City of Albany Industrial Development Agency

21 Lodge Street Albany, New York 12207 Telephone: (518) 434-2532 Fax: (518) 434-9846

Susan Pedo, Chair Lee Eck, Vice Chair Darius Shahinfar, Treasurer Anthony Gaddy, Secretary Robert Schofield Sarah Reginelli, Chief Executive Officer Thomas Conoscenti, COO/Interim CFO Andy Corcione, Project Services Director Marisa Franchini, Agency Counsel A. Joseph Scott, Special Counsel

To: Darius Shahinfar Lee Eck Susan Pedo Anthony Gaddy Robert Schofield

CC: Sarah Reginelli Marisa Franchini Joe Scott Emma Fullem Thomas Conoscenti Andy Corcione Erin Grace Jesse McCaughey Date: December 3, 2021

IDA FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

A meeting of the Finance Committee of the City of Albany Industrial Development Agency will be held on <u>Wednesday</u>, <u>December 8</u>, <u>2021 at 12:15 pm</u> and conducted telephonically pursuant to S.50001/A.40001.

AGENDA

Roll Call, Reading & Approval of the Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting of November 10, 2021

Report of Chief Financial Officer

A. None

Unfinished Business

A. None

New Business

- A. Albany Medical Center (391 Myrtle Ave)
 - Discussion & possible positive/negative recommendation for an Amended PILOT Agreement
- B. 733 Broadway, LLC
 - Discussion & possible positive/negative recommendation for Assignment & Assumption of PILOT Agreement
- C. Professional Services Agreements 2022
 - i. Legal Services General Counsel
 - ii. Legal Services Bond/Special Counsel
 - iii. Professional Services
 - iv. Contract for Services Economic Development
 - v. Contract for Services IDA
- D. Financing Guideline Review
- Finance Committee Self Evaluation
- F. Capitalize Albany Corporation (Liberty Park Acquisition Assistance)
 - . Liberty Park Update

Please note that any materials for this item will be included in a supplemental packet available on the CAIDA website.

Other Business

- A. Agency Update
- B. Compliance Update

Adjournment

City of Albany Industrial Development Agency

21 Lodge Street Albany, NY 12207 Telephone: (518) 434-2532 Fax: (518) 434-9846

Susan Pedo, Chair Lee Eck, Vice Chair Darius Shahinfar, Treasurer Anthony Gaddy, Secretary Robert Schofield Sarah Reginelli, Chief Executive Officer Thomas Conoscenti, Chief Operating Officer Andy Corcione, Project Services Director Marisa Franchini, Agency Counsel A. Joseph Scott, Special Counsel

IDA MINUTES OF FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, November 10, 2021

Attending: Darius Shahinfar, Susan Pedo, Lee Eck and Anthony Gaddy

Absent: None

Also Present: Sarah Reginelli, Ashley Mohl, Erin Grace, Andy Corcione, Mike Bohne, Renee

McFarlin, Tom Conoscenti, Emma Fullem, Jesse McCaughey, Marisa

Franchini, Nicole Brown and Joe Scott

Public Present: Phyllis Hathaway, Matt Jones, Charles Malcomb

Chair Darius Shahinfar called the Finance Committee meeting of the IDA to order at 12:16 p.m.

Roll Call, Reading and Approval of Minutes of the October 13, 2021 Finance Committee Meeting

A roll call of the Committee members present was held. Chair Darius Shahinfar reported that all Committee members were present. Since the minutes of the previous meeting had been distributed to Committee members in advance for review, Mr. Shahinfar made a proposal to dispense with the reading of the minutes. Mr. Shahinfar proposed to approve the minutes of the Finance Committee meeting of October 13, 2021. A motion was made by Susan Pedo and seconded by Lee Eck to accept the minutes as presented. The motion to accept the minutes as presented was passed with all other members voting aye.

Report of Chief Financial Officer

None.

Unfinished Business

None.

New Business

Albany Medical Center (391 Myrtle Ave)

Staff provided the Finance Committee with background information associated with the Albany Medical Center (AMC) Medical Office Building Project at 391 Myrtle Ave. Staff noted that representatives of AMC were present at the meeting to answer questions. The original Project involved a PILOT Agreement relating to the privately leased portions of a medical office building (MOB) as well as tax-exempt and taxable bond issuances to finance the building's construction that was concurrently approved through the City of Albany Capital Resource Corporation. Because AMC anticipated having both private and tax-exempt uses in the building fluctuating over time, the PILOT Agreement laid out two scenarios for calculating PILOT

payments, which were generally based on the percentage of private occupancy in the building. Per the PILOT Agreement, the project was required to submit annual tenant affidavits certifying to the building's square footage to determine which of the two scenarios was to be used. Over time, however, as the percentages of private occupancy shifted because of increased consolidation in the medical industry, the formula became increasingly difficult to administer each year. This has resulted in significantly more of the square footage of the building being taken up by AMC space versus private occupancy than originally anticipated.

In 2019, the City of Albany CRC approved a reallocation of the tax-exempt and taxable CRC Bonds to align the allocation of the bonds to the actual allocation of hospital/private tenant use of the MOB. The current request at hand involves an amendment to the PILOT Agreement (A) to reduce the amount of square footage subject to the PILOT Agreement and (B) to provide that the "Scenario 2" PILOT structure will be in effect for the remainder of the PILOT term through 2028. Approving the request would align the PILOT Agreement with the reality of the hospital/private tenant use of the MOB and reconcile the PILOT Agreement allocation with the CRC Bonds allocation.

Darius Shahinfar called for a motion to enter executive session and exempt session at 12:27 p.m. to discuss the financial history of the project beneficiary and seek the advice from counsel. Susan Pedo put forward a motion to go into executive and exempt session and seconded by Lee Eck. A vote being taken, the motion passed with all members voting aye.

At 12:47 p.m., a motion to go out of executive and exempt session was made by Anthony Gaddy and seconded by Lee Eck. A vote being taken, the motion passed with all members voting aye. No action was taken during executive session.

Darius Shahinfar reported that the Committee discussed the request and was not taking action at this time, pending additional information from staff and counsel for the next Finance Committee meeting. Staff noted that if the Finance Committee determines to move forward with this request, IDA staff and counsel will prepare a notice to be mailed to the affected tax jurisdictions.

Chair Darius Shahinfar called for a motion to change the order of the agenda, to receive both the Agency Update and Compliance Update before proceeding the Liberty Park item under New Business. A motion was made by Susan Pedo and seconded by Lee Eck. A vote being taken, the motion passed with all members voting aye.

Other Business

Agency Update

Staff reported to the Committee that interviews have been scheduled by the Common Council to fill the two vacant positions on the IDA Board. Staff updated the Committee that the NYSEDC is holding an IDA Academy on November 16 which includes the ABO Training and noted a number of Board members have registered.

Compliance Update

None.

New Business (Cont'd)

Capitalize Albany Corporation (Liberty Park Acquisition Assistance)

Upon repeating the previously stated disclosure of their relationships with Capitalize Albany Corporation, Member Susan Pedo, Member Anthony Gaddy and the Capitalize Albany Corporation Staff recused themselves and left the meeting before the discussion started at 12:59 p.m.

Minutes provided by Hodgson Russ.

Upon repeating the previously-made disclosure of their relationships with Capitalize Albany Corporation, Chair Susan Pedo and Vice Chair Anthony Gabby and the Capitalize Albany Corporation Staff recused themselves and left the meeting before the discussion started at approximately 12:49 pm.

Chair Darius Shahinfar asked Attorney Scott to report on the status of the matter. Attorney Scott briefly summarized the status of the matter and the actions to be considered by the full board at the meeting of the Agency scheduled for next week. The actions consist of consideration of the retaining of a surveyor to prepare an acquisition map in connection with the condemnation of the parcels and an update on the status of the litigation. After some discussion regarding the retaining of a surveyor and the process, the members of the Finance Committee directed Agency Counsel to proceed with the process for the retaining of a surveyor.

Chair Shahinfar then asked for a motion to go into Executive Session for the purpose of reviewing the status of the pending litigation. Motion was made by Chair Shahinfar and seconded by Mr. Eck. The motion was passed unanimously. The members of the Committee went into Executive Session at 12:58 pm. The members of the Committee came out of Executive Session at 1:10 pm, and Chair Shahinfar noted for the record that no action was taken during the Executive Session.

Once back in open session, Chair Shahinfar asked if there was any further business. Noting that there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:12 pm by motion made by Chair Shahinfar and seconded by Mr. Eck, with the motion passing unanimously.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at pm by motion made by a seconded by, with the motion passing unanimously.	and
Respectfully submitted,	
Anthony Gaddy, Secretary	



43 New Scotland Avenue, MC-114 Albany, New York 12208-3497

P 518.262.3579 www.amc.edu

Frances S. Albert EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

October 12, 2021

Ms. Sarah Reginelli City of Albany Industrial Development Agency 21 Lodge Street Albany, NY 12207

RE: Request to Amend PILOT Agreement between the City of Albany IDA and Albany Medical Center Premises located at 391 Myrtle Avenue, Albany, NY – PILOT #144

Dear Ms. Reginelli:

We are reaching out to you and the City of Albany IDA in order to request consideration of an amendment to the PILOT Agreement ("Agreement") that was entered into on December 1, 2014 relative to the 135,000 sf medical office building located at 391 Myrtle Avenue, Albany, NY. The Albany Medical Center (now known as Albany Med Health System) ("AMC") very much appreciated the willingness of the IDA to have provided this PILOT arrangement for the building, which greatly assisted with the overall financial viability of the project.

We are now requesting an amendment, however, in order to have the PILOT Agreement more closely match the current occupancy of the building by Albany Med and affiliates, all not-for-profit health care entities, for use in delivering healthcare services consistent with their exempt status. The existing Agreement had been drafted before the completion of the 135,000 sf building, and before the exact square foot occupancy of the building was known. The existing agreement identified 56.35% (or 76,072.5 sf) of the total building space as being the Commercial Facility Portion of the building, or that portion which would be occupied by third party tenants unrelated to Albany Med. The Commercial Facility Portion was to be subject to real estate taxes, with tax obligations based upon 56.35% of the Project Improvements Assessed Value (if Scenario 2 Schedule in the Agreement was used). In fact, when the building was completed in late 2015, the Albany Medical Center did not end up leasing this percentage of the total building to unrelated third party tenants. Leases were only entered into with two tenants, with a combined 38.6% of the total building or 52,112 sf combined. In addition, in late 2018, subsequent to the building completion date, the Albany Medical College acquired the assets of one of the original tenants (The Vascular Group), so that the amount of space leased to a third party not related to AMC was reduced to 18.3% of the total building area. This reduction in third party leased space also reduced the amount of external rental income received by AMC.

In 2019, AMC also modified the City of Albany CRC issued bond financing relative to the building. As part of the modified financing arrangement, the portion of the total financing for the building that was tax-exempt was increased from 30% to 75%. This therefore reduced the taxable portion of the building financing to 25%. The City of Albany CRC had approved this bond modification at the request of AMC

since the affiliated entities of AMC were now occupying more than 75% of the total building. This modification thus more closely reflected the increased tax-exempt nature of the building occupancy. (Please see attached Resolution from the City of Albany CRC.)

In summary, AMC is requesting that the City of Albany IDA amend the PILOT Agreement for 391 Myrtle Avenue by reducing the size of the Commercial Facility Portion of the building as described in Exhibit A of the Agreement to 33,750 sf, or 25% of the total building area. This percentage will then match the percentage of taxable bond financing pertaining to the building and be a closer match to the actual occupancy of third party tenancy unrelated to AMC.

We would like to express our strong gratitude for the consideration of this request and for the on-going partnership with the City of Albany IDA.

Please feel free to reach out to Phyllis Hathaway, Vice President of Treasury Services, for any questions related to this matter. She can be reached at 518-262-5729 or hathawp@amc.edu.

Thank you very much,

Frances S. Albert

Executive Vice President,

Chief Operating Officer, & Chief Financial Officer

cc. Phyllis Hathaway, VP - Treasury Services, AMC
Matthew C. Jones, Executive VP and General Counsel, AMC
Andrew Corcione, Senior Economic Developer, Capitalize Albany
A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq, Hodgson Russ, LLP

greyhillgroup

Since Joining forces in 2020, Moshe Bloorian and Jacob Herskowitz have expanded their portfolios in both multifamily and industrial. The company has purchased 24 units in Troy, NY. At first they focused on class C groups but recently have expanded to class A and B properties. Greyhill Group has purchased 150 4th St Troy, NY which is a 16 unit Class B building, upon purchase, rent collections were subpar and rent was below market value. Through intense in-house management and renovations Greyhill Group was able to bring the rent to market value and operate now at 100% collections even during the covid pandemic. Over the past few months the company has purchased a 30 unit garden style asset via a Fannie Mae loan and the property is already flourishing. Another prized acquisition has been 5 Broadway in Troy NY. We intend to fully renovate this historic landmark and create a lot of value by offering our residence a much more luxurious product. A factor that brings so much success when investing in the capital region of Albany has been the ability to self-manage all of our assets. We take pride in it and hope to build our management arm side by side with our investment company.

Greyhill Group's secondary focus is warehousing in markets with low vacancy and high absorption throughout the United States. Greyhill Group purchased a 100,00 SF warehouse in Bridgeport, CT and are in contract on a fully NNN leased warehouse in Milford CT that has Tesla Motors as the anchor tenant. They are also involved in consulting on the sale of a Pepsi Warehouse in Dayton, Ohio and a social security office in Fairfield County, CT.

GreyHill Group has taken pride in developing relationships with experts within the field of finance, economics, networking, valuation, asset/property management, and due diligence to tackle the challenges of acquiring large multi-family opportunities.

Greyhill group hopes to continue to expand and succeed in the multifamily and industrial marketplace, by continuously finding unique investment opportunities. Attached please find our current portfolio of properties.

greyhillgroup

Greyhill Group is excited about the potential to purchase 733 Broadway in Albany NY. The purchase price is \$5,725,000 and has an assumable loan, which we are currently working to assume from the lender. Additionally, the acquisition is dependent upon an assumption of the current City of Albany Industrial Development Agency ("CAIDA") PILOT, which is a contingency in our purchase contract.

Toward that end, we hereby respectfully request that the CAIDA board consents to the assignment of the CAIDA's PILOT agreement and any related documents from 733 Broadway LLC to our special purpose entity LOFTS BSD LLC.

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Moshe Bloorian

Managing Member

greyhillgroup

Properties invested in:

79 units Multi family, Albany, New York.

25 units Multi family, Troy, New York.

46 Units 5 Broadway Troy NY

16 Units 150 4th St Troy NY

30 Units 11-21 Ashdown Rd Ballston Spa, NY

40 units Multi family, Port Jervis, New York.

46 units Multi family, Rensselaer New York.

20,000 square feet Industrial, Bridgeport, Connecticut.

110,000 square feet Industrial, Bridgeport, Connecticut.

Properties in contract:

70,000 square feet Industrial Milford, CT

31 Units 733 Broadway Albany, NY

406 Fulton Ave Troy, NY

GREYHILL MANAGEMENT GROUP LLC
ATTACHMENT TO CITY OF ALBANY IDA APPLICATION
ARTICLE VII, SECTION B, EMPLOYMENT PLAN

The project facility located at 733 Broadway in the City of Albany, NY contains two commercial spaces. One space consists of approximately 2,182 square feet and is currently occupied by Norstar Development Corporation, which will vacate such space upon the sale of the facility to LOFTS BSD LLC. The other commercial space consists of approximately 1,682 square feet and is currently occupied by Robert A. Becher, Attorney at Law, which is anticipated to remain in such space post-sale. It is the applicant's understanding that approximately 2 FTE's are currently associated with the Robert A. Becher space and approximately 4 FTE's are associated with the Norstar Development Corporation space for a total of approximately 6 FTE's. The applicant anticipates retaining the 2 FTE's associated with the Robert A. Becher space and hiring 2 part-time maintenance workers, 1 part-time superintendent and 1 part-time leasing agent. Therefore, the applicant anticipates that the project facility in aggregate will retain 2 FTE's out of the existing 6 FTE's and will directly create 4 new part-time positions, which equates to approximately 2 new FTE positions. Additionally, the applicant will actively market the 2,182 square feet of commercial space that will be vacated by Norstar Development Corporation and anticipates that once leased a minimum of 1 new FTE will be created. This space could potentially accommodate another 4 to 6 FTE employees depending upon the type of commercial tenant obtained.

City of Albany Industrial Development Agency

Application for Assistance

			Date: December 1, 2021		
Agency should familia	ine yo . Thes be an r with	ur firm's e e answers swered ac the busine	HOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to ligibility for financing and other assistance from the City of Albany Industrial Development will also be used in the preparation of papers in this transaction. Accordingly, all questions curately and completely by an officer or other employee of your firm who is thoroughly ess and affairs of your firm and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project. Let to acceptance by the Agency.		
то:	c/o 21	Departn Lodge St	BANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY nent of Economic Development reet v York 12207		
This a	ppli	cation re	spectfully states:		
APPL	ICAN'	Г:			
Nam	e:	Greyhill f	Management Group LLC		
Addr	ess:	183 Mad	ison Ave Suite 1515		
City:		New Yor	k State: NY Zip: 10016		
Fede	ral ID	/EIN:	84-4665681 Website: Greyhillgroup.com		
Prim	ary C	ontact:	Moshe Bloorian		
Title	;	Managin	g Partner		
Phon	e: 34	79442131	Email: mo@greyhillgroup.com		
	NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS APPLICATION:				
Moshe	Bloo	rian, Jaco	b Herskowitz and Robert Ryan		
IF API	PLICA	NT IS RE	PRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:		
NAME	NAME OF ATTORNEY: Robert Ryan, Esq. Harris Beach PLLC				
ATTO	A'T'TORNEY'S ADDRESS: 677 Broadway Albany NY 12207				
PHON	PHONE: 5187012715 E-MAIL: rryan@harrisbeach.com				
NOTE:	PLE	ASE READ	THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 3 HEREOF BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS FORM.		

INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. The Agency will not approve any application unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application and the summary contains sufficient information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action.
- 2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the subject of this application (the "Project").
- 3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer which is estimated.
- 4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet.
- 5. When completed, return one (1) copy of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this application.
- 6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment form concerning the Project which is the subject of this application.
- 7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying. If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant's competitive position, the applicant may identify such elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of the Public Officers Law.
- 8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency's bonds issued to finance the Project). The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel/special counsel to the Agency. The costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency's general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the Project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue.
- 9. The Agency has established an application fee of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application. THIS APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE.
- 10. The Agency has also established an administrative fee equal to (A) one percent (1%) of the cost of the Project in the case of an Agency Straight Lease Transaction, and (B) one percent (1%) of the aggregate principal amount of the bonds to be issued by the Agency in the case of an Agency Bond Transaction. The Agency has also established an administrative fee for the issuance of refunding bonds for Agency Bond Transactions. The formula for the calculation of the administrative fee for the issuance of refunding bonds is outlined in the Agency's Policy Manual. THESE FEES ARE PAYABLE ON THE CLOSING DATE.

DATED: JULY 18, 2019

Answer all questions. Use "None" or "Not Applicable" where necessary.

SUMMARY OF PROJECT
Applicant: Greyhill Management Group LLC
Contact Person: Moshe Bloorian
Phone Number: 3479442131
Occupant: Residential tenants and vacant commercial/retail space
Project Location (include Tax Map ID): 733 Broadway Albany NY 65.83-1-32
Approximate Size of Project Site: .17 acres with 48,800 square foot building
Description of Project: Acquisition of a market rate rental housing and commercial/retail facility. 29 residential units with 2 commercial/retail spaces. Seeking assumption of existing IDA PILOT agreement.
Type of Project: Manufacturing Commercial Other-Specify Warehouse/Distribution Not-For-Profit
Employment Impact: Existing FTE Jobs: 6 Retained FTE Jobs: 2 FTE Jobs Created: 3 Construction Jobs Created: N/A
Project Cost: 5750000
Type of Financing: Tax-Exempt Taxable Straight Lease
Amount of Bonds Requested: 0
Estimated Value of Tax-Exemptions:
N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Tax: Mortgage Recording Taxes: Real Property Tax Exemptions: (auto-calculated) Other (please specify):
Provide estimates for the following:
Average Estimated Annual Salary of Jobs to be Created: Annualized Salary Range of Jobs to be Created: Estimated Average Annual Salary of Jobs to be Retained: Unknown

III AP	PLICANT	INFORMAT	ION						
A) Applicant:									
Name: Greyhill Management Group LLC									
Address:	183 Madi	son Ave Suit	e 1515						
City:	New York	(State:	NY	Zip:	10016		
Federal ID	/EIN:	84-4665681	and the state of t	Website:	Greyhillgro	oup.com	Chica-White Commission		
Primary C	ontact:	Moshe Bloo	rian		Kento Maria Maria	di Salayan Amaron			33146
Title:	Managing) Partner					A 204		
Phone: 34	79442131	MANAGE CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY	Email:	mo@greyhill	group.com	<u>,</u>			
- санале			l	Les estatements de la constantina della constantina de la constantina della constant		colored to the state of the sta	·		
				different fro on the proper			miert? If ves	.,	
Name:	LOFTS BSI	***************************************	e woon	n the proper	cy refuted to) till3 []	oject: ij yes		
Address:	10 Bond St	reet Suite 257							
City:	Great Neck	Control of the Contro		State:	NY	Zip:	11021		And the state of t
Federal ID	/EIN:	87-3251780	***************************************	Website:					
Primary Co	•	Moshe Blooria	1	enementalistische Scholer SCHOLES SCHO				odire taninanianum od	hinin hill Colon Colon NATION - Colon Colo
Title:	Managing N	/lember	ушиштий уд Айта Айта (он Айта (он Айта) Дору (он Ата) (он Айта (он Айта)			DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OF	Person Constitution of Activities (1994)	Manager Parket Street	
Phone: 347	9442131		Email:	mo@greyhillgro	oup.com				•
Describe the terms and conditions of the lease between the Applicant and the Real Estate Holding Company. If there is an option to purchase the property, provide the date option was signed and the date the option expires: LOFTS BSD LLC is a special purpose entity created by the applicant to hold the property located at 733 Broadway, Albany NY once acquired.									

C) <u>Curr</u>	ent Project Site Owner	(if different from Applicant or Real Estate Holding Company):
Name:	733 Broadway LLC	
Title:		
Address:	733 Broadway	
City:	Albany	State: NY Zip: 12207
Phone:	Accessment to the Control of Cont	Email:
	Control (1999) Programmy American account account of the substitute of the State of	The contract and the co
D) Atto	rney:	
Name:	Robert J. Ryan	
Firm Na	me: Harris Beach PLLC	
Address	: 677 Broadway Suite 1	101
City:	Albany	State: NY Zip: 12207
Phone:	5187012715	Email: rryan@harrisbeach.com
	Last constant de la c	
E) <u>Ger</u>	neral Contractor:	
Name:	N/A	
Firm Na	ame:	
Addres	s:	
City:		State: Zip:
Phone:		Email:

II. APPLICANT'S COMP.	ANY OWNERSHIP & HIS	ΓORÝ		230229		
A) <u>Company Organizat</u>	ion:					
Year founded: 2020	Founded in which state	: NY	l N	AICS Code	•	
real lounded. [2020	rounded in which state			mos couc	The man bear and the second se	
Type of ownership (e.g., C-Co	rp, LLC): LLC			***************************************		
B) <u>Company Managem</u>	ent					
Name	Office Held		Other Pri	incipal Bus	siness	
GREYHILL MANAGEMEN	IT GR NY	White the second	Add South Control of the Control of	N/A	KANASHON MARKATINI KANASHANI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI MARKATINI M	
AND THE RESIDENCE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPE	ON CONTROL ON THE PROPERTY OF		- allian collasse assa scalasse colling (1941)		######################################	
					COMMISSION OF THE PROPERTY OF	
	Convenient III of Convenient III III III III III III III III III I	Perotici-sulpation			Managagish (Tepper Strategish H. M. Stategish of Managas Andreas Andre	
Company Ownership:	ua au mautu aua with awa an	ahin of avoatou	than EOV and			
List all stockholders, member attach an organizational ow						
address, office held, and othe	•		,			
	Office Held	% of	% of			
Name	Office Held	Ownership	Voting			
		Ownership	Rights			
Moshe Bloorian		50	50			
Jacob Herskowitz	Vegetage graph gra	50	50			
	Control of the Contro	The state of the s				
ALL AND CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROP						
Augustus and Augus	The second secon					
Is the Applicant or manage		v a plaintiff or	a defendant in			
any civil or criminal litigati	on?	****	OddiniohosiCHOviller/IIIA TAVIII	Yes	No	
If yes, describe:						
Has any person listed above criminal litigation?				Yes	No	
If yes, describe:		SHILL SHIP SOURCE STATE OF THE SHIP SHIP SHIP SHIP SHIP SHIP SHIP SHIP				
Has any person listed above ever been charged with a crime other than a minor traffic violation?					☑No	
If yes, describe:		Amount in the second se	vol			
					1 mag	
Has any person listed above traffic violation?				☐ Yes	☑ No	
				drimbliste q		
ii yoo, accolibe.		460HAMA	<u>Марија (дара проведа мала на пример на приме</u>			
Has any person listed above connected ever been in recei				Yes	No	
If yes, describe:						

DATED: JULY 18, 2019

C) <u>Company Description</u>:

Describe in detail the Company's background, products, customers, goods and services: Since Joining forces in 2020, Moshe and Jacob have expanded their portfolios in both multifamily and industrial. GMG has purchased 24 units in Troy, NY. At first they focused on class C groups but recently have expanded to class A and B properties. GMG has purchased 150 4th St. Troy, NY which is a 16 unit Class B building, upon purchase, rent collections were subpar and rent was below market value. Through intense in-house management and renovations GMG was able to bring the rent to market value and operate now at 100% collections even during the covid pandemic. Over the past few months the company has purchased a 30 unit garden style asset via a Fannie Mae Ioan. The property is already flourishing and we hope to be able to cash out within 2 years. Another prized acquisition has been 5 Broadway in Troy NY. We intend to fully renovate this historic landmark and create a lot of value by offering our residence a much more luxurious product. A factor that brings so much success when investing in the capital region of Albany has been the ability to self manage all of our assets. We take pride in it and hope to build our management arm side by side with our investment company. GMG's secondary focus is warehousing in markets with low vacancy and high absorption throughout the United States. GMG purchased a 100,00 SF warehouse in Bridgeport, CT and are in contract on a fully NNN leased warehouse in Milford CT that has Tesla Motors as the anchor tenant. They are also involved in consulting on the sale of a Pepsi Warehouse in Dayton, Ohio and a social security office in Fairfield County, CT. GreyHill Group has taken pride in developing relationships with experts within the field of finance, economics, networking, valuation, asset/ property management, and due diligence to tackle the challenges of acquiring large multi-family opportunities. Greyhill group hopes to continue to expand and succeed in the multifamily and industrial marketplace, by continuously finding unique investment opportunities. Existing Banking Relationship(s): TD BANK Yes No Has the Company ever received incentives tied to job creation? If yes, describe: Yes No N/A Were the goals met? If no, why not? Additional sheets may be attached, if necessary.

7

III. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND DETAILS
A) Assistance requested from the Agency: Select all that apply:
□ Exemption from Sales Tax□ Exemption from Mortgage Tax☑ Exemption from Real Property Tax
☐ Taxable Bonds ☐ Tax-exempt Bonds (typically for non-for-profits or qualified manufacturers) ☐ Other, specify:
B) <u>Project Description:</u> Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site, identifying all existing or new buildings/structures.
Summary: (Please provide a brief narrative description of the Project.): Acquisition of market rate rental housing and commercial/retail facility located at 733 Broadway Albany containing 29 residential units and 2 commercial/retail spaces. Seeking a assignment and assumption of existing PILOT agreement and potential mortgage recording tax exemption.
Location of Proposed Project:
Street Address - Tax Map ID(s): 733 Broadway Albany NY 65.83-1-32
Is the Applicant the present legal owner of the Project site? Yes V No
If yes: Date of Purchase: Purchase Price:
If no:
1. Present legal owner of the Project site: 733 Broadway LLC
2. Is there a relationship, legally or by common control, between the Applicant and the present owner of the Project site?
If yes:
3. Does the Applicant have a signed option to purchase the site? Yes No N/A
If yes: Date option signed: 8/22/21 Date option expires: 12/22/21
Is the Project site subject to any property tax certiorari?

Describe the Project including, scope, purpose (e.g., new build, renovations, equipment leases, etc.), timeline, and milestones. The Project scope must engagency's benefits are not retroactive:	and/or equipment tail only future woi	purchases, ·k, as the
How many units will the project encompass (include total of number of commercial	and residential units)?	31
How many square feet of commercial space will the project entail?	3,864	
Acquire prior to expiration of option to purchase (December 22, 2021) a market rate resident consisting of 29 residential units and 2 commercial/retail spaces consisting of 3,864 square facquisition is contingent upon the ability to assume the Seller's existing PILOT agreement wi	eet located at 733 Broa	ail 48,800 square foot facility adway, Albany, NY. The
	,	
Would this Project be undertaken but for the Agency's financial assista	ance? Yes	№ No
If yes, describe why the Agency's financial assistance is necessary and the Applicant's business or operations:	l the effect the Pr	oject will have on
N/A		

C) <u>Project Site Occupancy</u> Select Project type for all end-users a	t Project site (choose all that apply	<i>r</i>):
☐ Industrial☐ Acquisition of existing facilit☑ Housing☐ Multi-tenant☑ Commercial	☐ Mixed use☐ Facility for ☐ Civic facility	Aging v (not-for-profit)
* The term "retail sales" means (1) sales to Law") primarily engaged in the retail sale Law), or (2) sales of a service to customer complete the Retail Questionnaire contain Note that it is the position of the Agency to the IDA Statute. List the name(s) of the expected tense footage to be used by each tenant. Ac	e of tangible personal property, as defirence of tangible personally visit the Project local ned in Section IV. That housing projects constitute "retail ant(s), nature of the business(es), ant(s), nature of the business(es), ant(s), nature of the business(es), ant(s).	ned in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax tion. If "retail" or "service" is checked, projects," as such term is defined under and percentage of total square
Company: 1. Robert A. Becher, ESQ. 2. TBD 3. Are there existing buildings on project a. If yes, indicate number and applications: 48,800 b. Are existing buildings in oper If yes, describe present use of	oproximate size (in square feet) of ation?	% of total square footage: 1,682 2,182 each existing N/A ousing/commercial
c. Are existing buildings abandor About to be abandoned? If yes, describe: d. Attach photograph of present	Yes No	□ N/A □ N/A

IV. RETAIL QUESTIONNAIRE

(Fill out if end users are "retail" or "service" as identified in Section III)

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or purchase services.

A)	Will any portion of the Project consist of facilities or property that will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the Project site? ¹ If yes, continue with the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire. If no, do not	☑ Yes	☐ No
	complete the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire.		
В)	What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the Project? Note that it is the position of the Agency that housing projects constitute "retail projects," as such term is defined under the IDA Statute. Accordingly, please answer "yes" and insert "100%" if your project is a housing project. If the answer is less than 33.33% do not complete the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire. If the answer to Question A is Yes and the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, complete the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire:	100	allocation of the state of the
1.	Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside the Capital Region Economic Development Region (i.e., Albany, Schenectady, Rensselaer, Greene, Columbia, Saratoga, Warren, and Washington counties)?	Yes	□ No
2.	Will the Project make available goods or services which are not currently reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which the proposed Project would be located?	Ll Yes	□ No
3.	Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York? If yes, explain:	Yes	No
4.	Will the Project be located in an area designated as an economic development zone pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law (Source: https://esd.ny.gov/empire-zones-program)?	Yes	□ No
	If yes, explain: _{N/A}		
5.	Will the Project be in a "highly distressed" census tract (as defined by the United States Census Bureau https://factfinder.census.gov/)	☐Yes	☐ No
	If yes, explain:		manner of the state of the stat
	N/A		

Note that it is the position of the Agency that housing projects constitute "retail projects," as such term is defined under the IDA Statute. Accordingly, please answer "yes" and insert "100%" if your project is a housing project.¹

V. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND PERMITTING

The Applicant must comply with the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) before the Agency can vote on proposed financial incentives. It is the Applicant's responsibility to provide a copy of the final SEQRA determination to the Agency.

Environmental Assessn	nent Form: 🗹 Short Form 🔲 Long Form
Lead Agency:	
Agency Contact:	
Date of submission:	
Status of submission:	
Final SEQRA	
determination:	
Will the Project meet zor	ning and land use regulation: ning and land use regulations for the proposed location? Yes No
	land use regulation is required? LYes 🖊 No ed change and status of the change request:
	s located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is oment/use of the property, describe the potential Project challenge:
L Does part of the Project o	onsist of a new building or buildings?
Yes No If yes, indicate number a	and size of new buildings:
Yes No	consist of additions and/or renovations to the existing buildings?
If yes, indicate the buildin of expansion and/or rend	ngs to be expanded or renovated, the size of any expansions and the nature ovation:
N/A	

VI. INTER-MUNICIPAL MOVE DETERMINATION

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from the Agency's financial assistance results in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area of the State to another area of the State or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within the State, Agency financial assistance is required to prevent the Project occupant from relocating out of the State, or it is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant's competitive position in its respective industry.

	ect result in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area o another area of the State?	Yes	✓ No
	ect result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the pant located within the State?	Yes	✓ No
reduction, the	er question above, explain how notwithstanding the aforementioned close e Agency's financial assistance is required to prevent the Project from reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant's competitive posit	elocating ou	t of the
ektimotokiinomassaksiseektoostaavilajaleekkä taviinoinekkä (kiiniineksi keeliksi kaseeksi kaseeksi kaseeksi ka			managara walio ka managa ka sa danasa da akii Pel
nunicipality?	ect involve relocation or consolidation of a Project occupant from anothe	r	
	Within New York State: Yes V No Within the City of Albany: Yes No		
f yes, explain:		nemakerskennsfeshildsindels Historieskenstensindelskateristere	7130 200
	1		II

VII. EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

A) Current and Projected Employee FTEs ("Year One" will begin upon the issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy):

		Projected FTEs			
	Current FTEs	New Year 1- 20 22	New Year 2 - 20 23	New Year 3 - 2024	Total Year 4-20 <mark>25</mark>
Full-time	2		1		3
Part-time		2	2	2	2
Seasonal					

B) Employment Plan in FTE

Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are expected to be retained and created as part of this Project. One FTE is equivalent to 35 hours of work per week or 1,820 hours per year. Convert part-time jobs into FTE by dividing the total number of hours for all part-time resources by 35 hours per week or 1,820 hours per year. ("Year One" will begin upon the issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy):

Attach a list that describes in detail the types of employment for this Project, including the types of activities or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new jobs.

	<u>Current</u> (Retained) Permanent FTE		Projected <u>New</u> Permanent FTE			
Occupation in Company	Average Annual Salary or Hourly Wage ²	Number of Current FTE	FTE in Year 1 2022	FTE in Year 2 2023	FTE in Year 3 2024	Total New FTE by Year 4 2025
Professional/ Management	Tenant - unknown	2				2
Administrative	\$50,000		1	1	1	1
Sales	Tenant - unknown			1		1
Services	\$50,000		1	1	1	1
Manufacturing	·					
High-Skilled				•	•	
Medium-Skilled	·			,		,
Basic-Skilled						
Other (specify)						,
	·					
Total (auto-calculated)		. 2	2	3	. 2	5

² Wages are defined as all remuneration paid to an employee. Remuneration means every form of compensation for employment paid by an employer to an employee; whether paid directly or indirectly by the employer, including salaries, commissions, bonuses, and the reasonable money value of board, rent, housing, lodging, or similar advantage received. Where gratuities are received from a person other than the employer, the value of such gratuities shall be included as part of the remuneration paid by the employer. Source: https://labor.ny.gov.

VIII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RESOURCES

Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are contracted to independent contractors (e.g., contractors or subcontractors) that would be retained and created as part of this Project.

Attach a list that describes in detail the types of contract resources for this Project, including the types of activities or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new contractor positions.

("Year One" will begin upon the issuance of Certificate of Occupancy or a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy):

	Current FTEs		Projected		
		New	New	New	Total
		Year 1-20	Year 2-20	Year 3-20	Year 4-20
Full-time	N/A				
Part-time					
Seasonal					

IX. CONSTRUCTION LABOR	A PARTICIPATION A PROPERTY AND A PARTICIPATION APPROPRIESTY APPROPRIES	NE COLOR DE REPORTE DE 19. VI	CHAPTAUD NOW	
	B P. WESSER W. G.A.	y paratarian katu	SERVE A REPORT OF A POST CO	

*Construction Jobs are defined by the number of persons individually identified on the pay roll of the General Contractor/Subcontractor in relation to the project.

Number of construction workers expected to be hired for this Project:

When does the applicant anticipate the start of construction?

When does the applicant anticipate the completion of construction?

What is the total value of construction contracts to be executed?

Describe the general contractor's plans and selection process for using regional and/or City of Albany construction labor or regional and/or City of Albany sub-contractors:

X. PROJECT COSTS AND FINANCING		
Attach additional		
A) Project Costs Description of Cost	Amount	
Land	Amount	
Buildings		
Machinery and Equipment Cost		
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs		
Architects and engineering fees		
Cost of Bond Issue (legal, financial and printing)		
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable)		
Other (specify) Acquisition Cost	5750000	
TOTAL PROJECT COST (auto-calculated)	5750000	
Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred If yes, describe:	l as of the date of this application? Yes	√ No
B) Sources of Funds for Project Costs		
Equity:		
Bank Financing:	4,700,000	
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance:	Lead Account Contract And Contr	
Taxable Bond Issuance		nitrimizational .
ublic Sources (Include total of all State and Federal grants and tax credits): Identify each State and Federal program:		pace Annual State of the State
N/A		
A residence of the second seco	Public Funds Total (auto-calculated): 0	adamana and deleg e
Additional sheets may be attached, as necessary.	TOTAL: (auto-calculated) 0	
Amount of total financing requested from lending	g institutions: 4.700,000	
Amount of total financing related to existing debt	t refinancing: N/A	
Has a commitment for financing been received?	Yes	No
If yes:	Laurel Industrial	
Lending Institution: Keybank		
Contact: Hayley Suminski	Phone: 6173166613	

DATED: JULY 18, 2019

XI. PROJECT EVALUATION AN	D ASSISTANCE FRAMEWORK	
Project Evaluation and Assistance		ete the following Matrix that is
part of the Agency's Project Evaluati	on and Assistance Framework.	
Baseline Requirements (Must Achiev	ve All)	
Complete Application	Albany 2030 Aligned	Meet Project Use Definition
Meets NYS/CAIDA Requirements	Planning Approval (if applicant) Approval Date:	"But For" Requirement
Community Benefit Metrics (Mus	t Achieve 10)	
Revitalization	Investment	Employment
Target Geography	Financial Commitment (cumulative)	Permanent Jobs (cumulative)
☐ Distressed Census Tract	□2.5M - 10M	3 - 40
☐ High Vacancy Census Tract	D 10.1 - 17.5M	41 - 80
□ Downtown □ DOWntown	□17.6M - 25M	□ 81 - 120 □ 121 - 100
□ BID		□ 121 - 180 □ > 180
□ Neighborhood Plan		L. 10U
Identified Priority	Community Commitment	Retained Jobs (cumulative)
☐ Downtown Residential	■ MWBE/DBE Participation	□ 3 - 40
□ Tax Exempt/Vacant	☐ EEO Workforce Utilization	4 1 - 80
☐ Identified Catalyst Site	☐ Inclusionary Housing	□ 81 - 120
☐Historic Preservation	□Regional Labor	□121 - 180
□Community Catalyst	☐ City of Albany Labor	□ > 180
Identificat County Anna	☐ Apprenticeship Program	Construction take
Identified Growth Area		Construction Jobs (cumulative) [] 6 - 80
☐ Manufacturing/Distribution☐ Technology		□ 81 - 160
☐ Hospitality		☐ 161 - 240
☐ Existing Cluster		□ > 240
☐ Conversion to Residential		
XII. ESTIMATED VALUE OF INC	ENTIVES	
A) Property Tax Exemption:		
Agency staff will complete this section wit	h the Applicant based on information s	ubmitted by the Applicant and the City
of Albany Assessor. If you are requesting an exc	ception to the PILOT schedule that cannot be acc	ommodated by the UTEP or the CAIDA Project
Evaluation and Assistance Framework, please provid	e additional sheets indicating the proposed PILI	OT payments.
Does your project meet the definition of "large pro Framework (\$25 Million, 15 Total Acres or Full Ser		
Current assessed full assessed value of the or the purchase price of the property, w		5750000
Estimated new assessed full value of propletter from the City of Albany Assessor:	erty after Project improvement based	on O
Estimated real property 2019 tax rate per	dollar of full assessment (auto-calculated): 47.9 (
*assume 2% annual increase in tax rate		
Estimated Completed Assessed Value on letter from the City of Albany Asse	- I	

PILOT Year	Existing Real Property Taxes	Estimated Real Property Taxes on Improved Value Without PILOT ³	Estimated Total Without PILOT	PILOT Abatement % based on Framework schedule Abatement percentages must be entered in decimals	*Estimated PILOT Payments
1				EASTER CONTROL OF THE PARTY OF	
2				en e	
3				Andrews and the second	,
4	:				
5					
6					
7				patrializados registros atrinos	
8				awadada (massara)	
9				Oli Minima Antonici Patricini	
10					
11					
12					
13	4.486				
14		Control of the Contro			
15					
16		and a state of the		maintenantiologic Code Military	
17					
18				tanaansaatakan-doudu-ku didinon	
19	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			Programment National Control C	
20	***************************************			Indicated Confession C	
	, J.,	h	C		0

*PILOT payments may not to fall short of \$675 per door or .97 per Square Foot as applicable from Framework

Please note that after year twelve (12) of any Multi-Family Commercial PILOT, a bifurcated structure commences whereby projects shall pay the greater of: (a) scheduled pilot payments as stated by assistance schedule or (b) 11.5% of gross revenue.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the project consists of an **affordable housing project**, the applicant shall make annual payments in lieu of property taxes pursuant to the PILOT Agreement with respect to the project as follows:(i) An amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the shelter rents (rents, excluding the component thereof, if any, attributable to energy and utility costs paid by the applicant) payable by the tenants in connection with the housing project.

If the applicant is requesting assistance that is a deviation from the Agency's UTEP, please refer to the Agency's Project Evaluation and Assistance Framework to determine the appropriate, potential standard deviation abatement schedule: http://albanyida.com/wp-content/uploads/2012/03/CAIDA-PILOT-Program-Board-Revised-1.pdf

³ The figures in this column assume that the Project is completed as described in the Application and without the involvement of the Agency and, therefore, subject to real property taxes. However, as provided in this Application, the Applicant has certified that it would not undertake the Project without the financial assistance granted by the Agency. Accordingly, this column is prepared solely for the purpose of determining the estimated amount of the real property tax abatement being granted by the Agency.

If the A	pplicant is requesting assistance that is greater than the Agency's standard UTEP of Evaluation and Assistance Framework, describe the incentives and provide a justing of the incentive and provide a justing of the incentive and provide a justing of the incentive and a provide a justing of the incentive and a provide a justing of the incentive and a justing of the incentive an	deviations ider fication for thi	ntified in the s PILOT request:
		taran kanan ka	alanda Adalanini Bayaninin da da kirik 2 Ada etta että oli alanda taita että oli alanda taita että oli alanda t
Note: Th	es and Use Tax Benefit: e figures below will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Fina ts the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may authorize witl cation.		
Costs	for goods and services that are subject to State and local sales and use	tax4:	0
	ated State and local sales and use tax benefit (sales tax amount multip plus additional use tax amounts):	lied	0
C) <u>Mo</u>	rtgage Recording Tax Benefit:		
Mortg	gage amount (include construction, permanent, bridge financing or ref	inancing):	4,700,000
Estim by .01	ated mortgage recording tax exemption benefit (mortgage amount mu)5:	ıltiplied	0
D) <u>Pe</u> i	centage of Project Costs Financed from Public Sector:		
	tage of Project costs financed from public sector: B + C + D + E below / A Total Project Cost)		
Α.	Total Project Cost:	parasensa en	5750000
В.	Estimated Value of PILOT (auto-filled):	Although the state of the state	0
C.	Estimated Value of Sales Tax Incentive:		0
D.	Estimated Value of Mortgage Tax Incentive:		0
E.	Total Other Public Incentives (tax credits, grants, ESD incentives, etc.):	production and the second seco	0

https://www.tax.ny.gov/pubs_and_bulls/tg_bulletins/st/quick_reference_guide_for_taxable_and_exempt_property_and_services.htm.

⁴ Sales and use tax (sales tax) is applied to: tangible personal property (unless specifically exempt); gas, electricity, refrigeration and steam, and telephone service; selected services; food and beverages sold by restaurants, taverns, and caterers; hotel occupancy; and certain admission charges and dues. For a definition of products, services, and transactions subject to sales tax see the following links: https://www.tax.nv.gov/bus/st/subject.htm and

⁵ The Mortgage Recording Tax in Albany County is equal to 1.25%. However, the Agency is authorized under the IDA Statute to exempt only 1.00%.

XIII. COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS

In order for the City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") to prepare a Cost/Benefit Analysis for a proposed project (the "Project"), the Applicant must answer the questions contained in this Project Questionnaire (the "Questionnaire"). Such information should consist of a list and detailed description of the benefits of the Agency undertaking the Project (e.g., number of jobs created, types of jobs created, economic development in the area, community benefits (including community commitment as described in the Agency's Project Evaluation and Assistance Framework), etc.). Such information should also consist of a list and detailed description of the costs of the Agency undertaking the Project (e.g., tax revenues lost, buildings abandoned, etc.).

This Questionnaire must be completed before we can finalize the Cost/Benefit Analysis, please complete this Questionnaire and forward it to us at your earliest convenience.

PROIECT OUESTIONNAIRE

1.	Name of Project Beneficiary ("Company"):	Greyhill Management Group LLC
2.	Brief Identification of the Project:	Acquisition of 733 Broadway
3.	Estimated Amount of Project Benefits Sought:	0
	A. Amount of Bonds Sought:	0
	B. Value of Sales Tax Exemption Sought	0
	C. Value of Real Property Tax Exemption Sought	0
	D. Value of Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Sought	0
4.	Likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion (please explain):	Yes No
	Acquisition of existing facility	

DATED: JULY 18, 2019

PROJECTED PROJECT INVESTMENT

A. Land-Related Costs	
1. Land acquisition	
2. Site preparation	
3. Landscaping	
4. Utilities and infrastructure development	
5. Access roads and parking development	egyptiggspannide miljermyngsjog om either in det eithe Ad-Amerika
6. Other land-related costs (describe)	
B. Building-Related Costs 1. Acquisition of existing structures	<u></u>
2. Renovation of existing structures	
3. New construction costs	coodelia kintrali kin
4. Electrical systems	examination control and contro
5. Heating, ventilation and air conditioning	
6. Plumbing 7. Other building-related costs (describe)	
7. Other building-related costs (describe)	
C. Machinery and Equipment Costs	
1. Production and process equipment	
2. Packaging equipment	
3. Warehousing equipment	
4. Installation costs for various equipment	
5. Other equipment-related costs (describe)	****
D. Furniture and Fixture Costs	
1. Office furniture	######################################
2. Office equipment	ACCOMMUNICATION CONTRACTOR CONTRA
Computers Other furniture-related costs (describe)	,
4. Other furnitures elated costs (describe)	
E. Working Capital Costs	
1. Operation costs	
2. Production costs	
3. Raw materials	
4. Debt service	A STATE OF THE STA
5. Relocation costs	
6. Skills training	
7. Other working capital-related costs (describe)	WANTED THE PROPERTY OF THE PRO
F. Professional Service Costs	
Architecture and engineering	
2. Accounting/legal	
3. Other service-related costs (describe)	
G. Other Costs	
1	5750000
2	Defends manufacture (Control of Control of C
H. Summary of Expenditures	
1. Total Land-Related Costs	0
2. Total Building-Related Costs	O CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY O
3. Total Machinery and Equipment Costs	0
and the second s	
4. Total Furniture and Fixture Costs	0
4. Total Furniture and Fixture Costs 5. Total Working Capital Costs	0
5. Total Working Capital Costs	0

PROJECTED NET OPERATING INCOME

I. Please provide projected Net Operating Income:

YEAR	Without IDA benefits	With IDA benefits
1	N/A	N/A
2		
3		enant introduction of the Activity of the Acti
4		
5	and the state of t	

PROJECTED CONSTRUCTION EMPLOYMENT IMPACT

I. Please provide estimates of total construction jobs and the total annual wages and benefits of construction jobs at the Project:

Year	Number of Construction Jobs	Total Annual Wages and Benefits	Estimated Additional NYS Income Tax
Current Year	N/A	N/A	N/A
Year 1	enticoni-sector (Indicate Anno Anno Anno Anno Anno Anno Anno Ann	participation of the state of t	Ut sindistrative and management and
Year 2			
Year 3			
Year 4	A STATE OF THE STA		
Year 5		A 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	

PROJECTED PERMANENT EMPLOYMENT IMPACT

- I. Estimates of the total number of existing permanent FTE jobs to be preserved or retained as a result of the Project are described in the tables in Section VII of the Application.
- II. Estimates of the total new permanent FTE jobs to be created at the Project are described in the tables in Section VII of the Application.
- III. Please provide estimates for the following:
 - A. Creation of New Job Skills relating to permanent jobs. Please complete Schedule A.

PROJECTED OPERATING IMPACT

I. Please provide estimates for the impact of Project operating purchases and sales:

Additional Purchases (1st year following project completion)	N/A
Additional Sales Tax Paid on Additional Purchases	
Estimated Additional Sales (1st full year following project completion)	
Estimated Additional Sales Tax to be collected on additional sales (1st full year following project completion)	

II. Please provide estimates for the impact of Project on existing real property taxes and new payments in lieu of taxes ("Pilot Payments"): If you are requesting an exception that cannot be accommodated by the auto-calculated fields, please provide additional sheets indicating the proposed PILIOT payments.

Year	Existing Real Property Taxes (Without Project)	New Pilot Payments (With IDA)	Total (Difference)
Current Year			0
Year 1			
Year 2			
Year 3			
Year 4			
Year 5			
Year 6			
Year 7			
Year 8			
Year 9			
Year 10			
Year 11			
Year 12			
Year 13			
Year 14			
Year 15			
Year 16			
Year 17			
Year 18			
Year 19			
Year 20			

ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The City of Albany Industrial Development Agency is supportive of inclusionary development practices. Please indicate which of the below described community benefits (as defined in the Agency's Project Evaluation and Assistance Framework) will be provided as a result of the Project, and please provide a detailed description of such benefits, together with any other economic benefits and community benefits expected to be produced as a result of the Project (attach additional pages as needed for a complete and detailed response). Examples of these benefits include:

(A)	MWBE/DBE Participation;	(L)	Downtown Residential;
(B)	EEO;	(M)	Tax Exempt/Vacant Property;
(C)	Workforce Utilization;	(N)	Identified Catalyst Site;
(D)	Inclusionary Housing;	(0)	Historic Preservation;
(E)	Regional Labor;	(P)	Community Catalyst;
(F)	City of Albany Labor;	(Q)	Manufacturing/Distribution;
(G)	Apprenticeship Program;	(R)	Technology;
(H)	Distressed Census Tract;	(S)	Hospitality;
(I)	High Vacancy Census Tract;	(T)	Existing Cluster; and
(J)	Downtown BID;	(ບ)	Conversion to Residential.
(K)	Neighborhood Plan;	(-)	

N/A	
	į
	•

XIV. OTHER			
Is there anything else the Agency's board should know regarding this Project?			
N/A			
	·		

CERTIFICATION

I certify that I have prepared the responses provided in this Questionnaire and that, to the best of my knowledge; such responses are true, correct, and complete.

I understand that the foregoing information and attached documentation will be relied upon, and constitute inducement for, the Agency in providing financial assistance to the Project. I certify that I am familiar with the Project and am authorized by the Company to provide the foregoing information, and such information is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I further agree that I will advise the Agency of any changes in such information, and will answer any further questions regarding the Project prior to the closing.

I affirm under penalty of perjury that all statements made on this application are true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge.

	Name of Person Completing Project
Date Signed: December 1, 2021	Questionnaire on behalf of the Company.
	Name: Moshe Blooruan
	Title: Managing Member
	Phone Number: 347-944-2131
	Address: 183 Madison Ave Suite 1515 NY, NY 10016
	Signature:

REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION

[name of CEO or another authorized representative of Applicant) confirms and says that he/she is the [Managing Memb] (title) of [Greyhill Management Gro] (name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached Application (the "Applicant"), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

- A. <u>Job Listings</u>. Except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOC") and with the administrative entity (collectively with the DOC, the "JTPA Entities") of the service delivery area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA"), as replaced by the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (Public Law 105-220), in which the Project is located.
- B. <u>First Consideration for Employment</u>. In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law, the applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where practicable, the applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project.
- C. <u>City Human Rights Law</u>. The applicant has reviewed the provisions of Chapter 48, Article III of the City Code, entitled "The Omnibus Human Rights Law" and agrees to comply with such provisions to the extent that such provisions are applicable to the applicant and the Project.
- D. <u>Annual Sales Tax Filings</u>. In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General Municipal Law, the applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the applicant.
- E. <u>Annual Employment Reports</u>. The applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports regarding the number of people employed at the Project site, including (1) the NYS-45 Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting and Unemployment Insurance Return for the quarter ending December 31 (the "NYS-45"), and (2) the US Dept. of Labor BLS 3020 Multiple Worksite report if applicable. The applicant also agrees, whenever requested by the Agency, to provide and certify or cause to be provided and certified such information concerning the participation of individuals from minority groups as employees or applicants for employment with regard to the project.
- F. <u>Local Labor Information</u>. The applicant is aware of and understands the provisions of Part 24 of the Policy Manual of the Agency, Pursuant to Part 24 of the Policy Manual of the Agency, the applicant agrees to provide information, in form and substance satisfactory to the Agency, relating to construction activities for projects; specifically: (i) the Company's contact person responsible and accountable for providing information about the bidding for and awarding of construction contracts relative to this Application and the Project, (ii) the

nature of construction jobs created by the Project, including the number, type, and duration of construction positions; and (iii) submit to the Agency a "Construction Completion Report" listing the names and business locations of prime contractors, subcontractors, and vendors who were engaged in the construction phase of the Project.

- G. Additional Fee for Low Income Housing/Tax Credit (9% only) Projects. An annual administrative fee equal to \$10,000 shall be payable annually by the applicant on each January 1 for a term equal to ten (10) years. This annual administrative fee is in addition to the standard administrative fee for Agency Straight Lease Transactions and Agency Bond Transactions and is applicable to Projects which provide for low income housing/tax credit (9% only) projects.
- H. <u>Uniform Agency Project Agreement</u>. The applicant agrees to enter into a uniform agency project agreement with the Agency where the applicant agrees that (1) the amount of Financial Assistance to be received shall be contingent upon, and shall bear a direct relationship to the success or lack of success of such project in delivering certain described public benefits (the "Public Benefits") and (2) the Agency will be entitled to recapture some or all of the Financial Assistance granted to the applicant if (a) the project is unsuccessful in whole or in part in delivering the promised Public Benefits, (b) certain "recapture events" occur (e.g., failure to complete the Project, sale or transfer of the Project, failure to make the estimated investment, failure to maintain job employment levels and failure to make annual reporting filings with the Agency).
- I. <u>Assignment of Agency Abatements</u>. In connection with any Agency Straight Lease Transaction or Agency Bond Transaction, the Agency may grant to the applicant certain exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, sales and use taxes and real property taxes. The applicant understands that the grant of such exemptions by the Agency is intended to benefit the applicant. Subsequently, if the applicant determines to convey the Project and, in connection with such conveyance to assign such exemptions to the purchaser, the applicant understand that any such assignment is subject to review and consent by the Agency, together with the satisfaction of any conditions that may be imposed by the Agency.
- J. Post-Closing Cost Verification. The applicant agrees (1) the scope of the Project will not vary significantly from the description in the public hearing resolution for the project and (2) to deliver to the Agency within sixty (60) days following the completion date of a project an affidavit providing the total costs of the project. In the event that the amount of the total project costs described in the affidavit at the completion date exceeds the amount described in an affidavit provided by the applicant on the closing date of the project, the applicant agrees to adjust the amounts payable by the applicant to the Agency by such larger amount and to pay to the Agency such additional amounts. In the event that the amount described is less, there shall not be any adjustment to the Agency fees.
- K. Representation of Financial Information. Neither this Application nor any other agreement, document, certificate, project financials, or written statement furnished to the Agency or by or on behalf of the applicant in connection with the project contemplated by this Application contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading. There is no fact within the special knowledge of any of the officers of the applicant which has not been disclosed herein or in writing by them to the Agency and which materially adversely affects or in the future in their opinion may, insofar as they can now reasonably foresee, materially adversely affect the business, properties, assets or condition, financial or otherwise, of the applicant.

L.	Agency	Financial	Assistance	Required	for	Project.	The	Project	would	not	be
undert	aken but	for the Fin	ancial Assis	tance provi	ided	by the Ag	ency	or, if the	Project (could	l be
undert	aken wit	thout the	Financial A	ssistance j	provi	ided by	the A	gency, t	hen the	Pro	ject
should	be under	rtaken by t	he Agency f	or the follo	wing	g reasons	;				

N/A

- M. <u>Compliance with Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law</u>: The Project, as of the date of this Application, is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the General Municipal including, but not limited to, the provisions of Section 859-a and subdivision one of Section 862; and the provisions of subdivision one of Section 862 of the General Municipal Law will not be violated if Financial Assistance is provided for the Project.
- N. <u>Compliance with Federal, State, and Local Laws</u>. The applicant is in substantial compliance with applicable local, state, and federal tax, worker protection, and environmental laws, rules, and regulations.
- O. <u>False or Misleading Information</u>. The applicant understands that the submission of any knowingly false or knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency involvement in the Project.
- P. <u>Absence of Conflicts of Interest</u>. The applicant acknowledges that the members, officers and employees of the Agency are listed on the Agency's website. No member, officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter described:

N/A

- Q. <u>Additional Information</u>. Additional information regarding the requirements noted in this Application and other requirements of the Agency is included the Agency's Policy Manual which can be accessed at www.albanyida.com.
- R. <u>Onsite Visits.</u> The applicant acknowledges that under the Agency's Policy Manual regarding monitoring and administration of projects, the Project is subject to periodic onsite visits by Agency staff.
- S. <u>Change in Control of Project Applicant.</u> In connection with any Agency Straight Lease Transaction or Agency Bond Transaction, the Agency may grant to the applicant certain exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, sales and use taxes and real property taxes. The applicant understands that the grant of such exemptions by the Agency is intended to benefit the applicant. Subsequently, if the applicant determines to enter into a merger, sale of the entity, consolidation or sale of ownership interests of the project applicant, the applicant understand that any such merger, sale of the entity, consolidation or sale of ownership interests of the applicant is subject to review and consent by the Agency, together with the satisfaction of any conditions that may be imposed by the Agency.

STATE OF NE	EW YORK)) SS.:
COUNTY OF A	
Moste	Blookiar, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:
1.	That I am the Manajin (Corporate Office) of Life Brid (Corporate Office) and that I am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.
2.	That I have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true, accurate, and complete.
	(Signature of Officer)

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of perjury.

This 2 day of Deemle , 2011

(N**a**tary Public)

JORGE PAGAN Notary Public, State of New York No. 01PA6405180 Qualified in Kings County Commission Expires March 02, 2024

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

Applicant hereby releases City of Albany Industrial Development Agency and the members, officers, servants, agents and employees thereof (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Agency") from, agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by (i) the Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the attached Application, regardless of whether or not the application or the project described therein or the issue of bonds requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, and (ii) the Agency's financing of the Project described therein; including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. If, for any reason, the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable, proper or requested action, or withdraws, abandons, cancels or neglects the Application, or if the Agency or the Applicant are unable to find buyers willing to purchase the total bond issue requested, then, and in that event, upon presentation of an invoice itemizing the same, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all actual costs incurred by the Agency in the processing of the Application, including attorneys' fees, if any.

(Applicant)

Sworn to before me this

3 day of 12, 20-1

(Notary Public)

JORGE PAGAN Notary Public, State of New York No. 01PA6405160 Qualified in Kingh County Commission Eppirer, Id active2, 2024

SCHEDULE A

CREATION OF NEW JOB SKILLS

Please list the projected new job skills for the new permanent jobs to be created at the Project as a result of the undertaking of the Project by the Company.

New Job Skills	Number of Positions Created	Range of Salary and Benefits
Leasing /sales	Direct 1 part-time	\$50,000
Facility Administration	Direct 1 Part-time	\$50,000
Maintenance	Direct 2 Part-Time	\$50,000
Retail	Tenant 1 FTE	unknown
		•

Should you need additional space, please attach a separate sheet.

NEW YORK STATE FINANCIAL REPORTING

REQUIREMENTS FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCIES

Be advised that the New York General Municipal Law imposes certain reporting requirements on IDAs and recipients of IDA financial assistance. Of importance to IDA Applicants is Section 859 (https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/GMU/859). This section requires IDAs to transmit financial statements within 90 days following the end of an Agency's fiscal year ending December 31, prepared by an independent, certified public accountant, to the New York State Comptroller, and the Commissioner of the New York State Department of Economic Development. These audited financial statements shall include supplemental schedules listing the following information:

- 1. All straight-lease ("sale-leaseback") transactions and whether or not they are obligations of the Agency.
- 2. All bonds and notes issued, outstanding or retired during the period and whether or not they are obligations of the Agency.
- 3. All new bond issues shall be listed and for each new bond issue, the following information is required:
 - a. Name of the Project financed with the bond proceeds.
 - b. Whether the Project occupant is a not-for-profit corporation.
 - c. Name and address of each owner of the Project.
 - d. The estimated amount of tax exemptions authorized for each Project.
 - e. The purpose for which the bond was issued.
 - f. The bond interest rate at issuance and, if variable, the range of interest rates applicable.
 - g. Bond maturity date.
 - h. Federal tax status of the bond issue.
 - i. Estimate of the number of jobs created and retained for the Project.
- 4. All new straight lease transactions shall be listed and for each new straight lease transaction, the following information is required:
 - a. Name of the Project.

- b. Whether the Project occupant is a not-for-profit corporation.
- c. Name and address of each owner of the Project.
- d. The estimated amount of tax exemptions authorized for each Project.
- e. The purpose for which each transaction was made.
- f. Method of financial assistance utilized for each Project, other than the tax exemptions claimed by the Project.
- g. Estimate of the number of jobs created and retained for the Project.

Sign below to indicate that you have read and inderstood the above.

Signature:

Name:

Moshe Bloorian

Title:

Managing Member

Company:

Greyhill Management Group LLC

Date:

December 1, 2021

Short Environmental Assessment Form Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part 1 – Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

Part 1 – Project and Sponsor Information	<u></u>				
LOFTS BSD LLC					
Name of Action or Project:					
733 Broadway					
Project Location (describe, and attach a location map): 733 Broadway Albany, NY 12207					
Brief Description of Proposed Action:					
Acquisition of land and Improvements located at 733 Broadway, Albany, NY 12207 consisting	g of 29 residential units and 2	commercial/retail spaces,			
Name of Applicant or Sponsor:	Telephone: 347-944-213	11			
Moshe Bloorlan	E-Mail: mo@greyhllgroup.com				
Address:	2 Triutt. Inologieyimigiou	ap.com			
183 Madison Ave Suite 1515		•			
City/PO: New York, New York	State:	Zip Code: 10016			
 Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, loca administrative rule, or regulation? If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the e may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to ques 	nvironmental recourses th	NO YES			
2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:	er government Agency?	NO YES			
a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?	.17 acres 0 acres 0 acres				
4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action: Urban Rural (non-agriculture) Industrial Commercia Forest Agriculture Aquatic Other(Spec	`	rban)			

5. Is the proposed action,	NO	YES	N/A
a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?		V	
b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?		V	
6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscap	 e?	NO	YES
			V
7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?		NO	YES
If Yes, identify:		V	
		NO	YES
8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?		V	
b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?		同	V
c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed action?			V
9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?		NO	YES
If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:			-
		V	1 🗆
·		 	
10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?	· ·	NO	YES
If No, describe method for providing potable water:			
			'
11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?		NO	YES
If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:			
			V
12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or dist	rict	NO	YES
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on t	-ha	V	П
State Register of Historic Places?	He		<u> </u>
b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?			
13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?		NO	YES
b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?		~	
		~	
If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:			

14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:		
Shoreline Forest Agricultural/grasslands Early mid-successional		
Wetland ✓ Urban ☐ Suburban		
		
15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or Federal government as threatened or endangered?	NO	YES
	V	
16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan?	NO	YES
	V	
17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?	NO	YES
If Yes,	V	
a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?		
 b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)? If Yes, briefly describe: 		Щ
		,
18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?	NO	YES
If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:		
	V	
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste management facility?	NO	YES
If Yes, describe:		
	V	
20. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or	NO	YES
completed) for hazardous waste? If Yes, describe:		
	V	
I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BE MY KNOWLEDGE	ST OF	
Applicant/sponsor/name: Moshe Bloorian Date: December 1, 20)21	
1/	-	
Signature:Title: Managing Member		
V. V		

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT Between

CITY OF ALBANY

and

CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

and

CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION

This professional services agreement, made this ____ day of January, 2022 (the "Agreement") between the CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a public benefit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency"), the CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), and the CITY OF ALBANY, having its principal office at City Hall, Eagle Street, Albany, New York (hereinafter referred to as the "City"):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Corporation need general counsel services in connection with their operations;

WHEREAS, the City through it office of the Corporation Counsel has offered to provide such general legal services to the Agency and the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Agency, the Corporation and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to formally provide for the terms of the general counsel services to be provided to the Agency and the Corporation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY COVENANT AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1 -SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

The office of the Corporation Counsel (the "General Counsel") shall perform the general legal services set forth under Article 2 entitled "SCOPE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES" during the period commencing on January 1, 2022 and continuing until December 31, 2022. In the performance and acceptance of the services herein, the parties understand, acknowledge, and agree that the General Counsel is assuming no managerial role, nor undertaking any oversight responsibilities with regard to the powers and duties of the Agency or the Corporation or the actions or non-actions of its members and board of directors. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to transfer governance, oversight, or fiduciary responsibilities from the Agency or the Corporation to General Counsel.

ARTICLE 2 - SCOPE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

During the period of this Agreement, the General Counsel agrees to provide general legal services for the Agency and Corporation, including but not limited to the following:

- 1. attendance at meetings of the Agency and the Corporation;
- 2. representing the Agency and the Corporation on general litigation matters;
- 3. provision of local counsel opinions on Agency and Corporation projects and financings;
- 4. provision of general counsel advice, including rendering opinions on Open Meetings Law, Freedom of Information Law, General Municipal Law Conflicts issues; and
- 5. conference with and assistance to the Agency and Corporation finance team, including bond counsel on Agency and Corporation matters.

ARTICLE 3 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE

In consideration of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Agency and the Corporation agree to pay and the City agrees to accept, as full compensation for all services rendered under this Agreement an amount equal to \$42,000 per year. The General Counsel shall provide professional staff time towards fulfillment of this Agreement, including all administrative clerical, secretarial, accounting, compliance, and information technology support as required.

ARTICLE 4 - METHOD OF PAYMENT

The Agency and the Corporation will pay the City the professional services fee referenced under Article 3 of this Agreement in a single installment due and payable no later than December 31, 2022.

ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated at any time by any party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. In the event of termination, General Counsel shall be entitled to compensation for all work performed pursuant to this Agreement to the date of termination.

ARTICLE 6 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

General Counsel shall comply with all Federal, State, and Local equal employment opportunity laws, rules, and regulations relating, to all matters contained in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 - ACCOUNTING RECORDS

General Counsel shall make all reasonable efforts to keep accurate and systematic accounts and records with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. The aforementioned records shall be made available for inspection or audit by the Agency if required. General Counsel shall not be required to maintain or submit itemized hourly records with respect to the services rendered. All records produced to the Agency pursuant to this Agreement shall be kept confidential and their contents shall not be disclosed by anyone in violation of the attorney-client privilege.

<u>ARTICLE 8 – ASSIGNING AGREEMENT</u>

The General Counsel shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any interest herein without first receiving written approval of the Agency and the Corporation.

ARTICLE 9 – OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

All final and written or tangible products completed by the General Counsel shall belong to the Agency and the Corporation. In the event of premature discontinuance of performance, the General Counsel agrees to deliver all existing products and data files to the Agency and the Corporation.

ARTICLE 10 - SURETY AND INSURANCE

The City will defend and indemnify the Agency for all claims, demands and causes of action arising out of the provision of legal services contemplated by this Agreement by General Counsel, agents or employees of the City.

ARTICLE 11 – ARBITRATION

In any event and notwithstanding any provisions made in the Agreement, the parties hereto will submit to arbitration any question or dispute arising between said parties as to the interpretation of any term or condition herein contained or with respect to any matter of compliance or non-compliance with the terms hereof, in accordance with and pursuant to Article 75 of the Civil practice Law and Rules of the State of New York.

ARTICLE 12 - EXTRA WORK

It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that no claim for damages or extra work shall be made in connection with this Agreement except such as may be ordered in writing and further evidenced by the execution of a supplemental Agreement between the Agency and Corporation and the City.

ARTICLE 13 – AMENDMENT

Each and every provision of law and clause required to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to have been inserted herein and, if through mistake or otherwise, such provision is not inserted then, upon the application of either party, this Agreement shall be amended forthwith to make such insertion.

ARTICLE 14 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

All of the terms, covenants, and Agreements herein contained shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first above written.

CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By: Chair
CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION
By:Chair
CITY OF ALBANY
By: Marisa Franchini, Esq.

December ___, 2021

City of Albany Industrial Development Agency 21 Lodge Street Albany, New York 12207 Attention: Susan Pedo, Chair

Re: City of Albany Industrial Development Agency

Legal Services - 2022

Dear Chair Pedo:

We are very pleased that the City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") has requested us (the "Firm") to perform certain legal services for the Agency as Bond Counsel and Special Counsel to the Agency. The scope of the work you have asked us to undertake is briefly described on Schedules A and B attached to this letter. A description of our policy with respect to certain administrative matters, including attorney representation conflicts and client communications is attached as Schedule D to this letter.

For each type of work described on a schedule attached hereto, we propose to bill for such work in the manner described on the respective schedule relating thereto. If such bill is sent to a party other than the Agency, a courtesy copy of such bill will be sent to the Agency upon request.

In connection with performing legal services, we will typically incur expenses, such as photocopying, shipping of documents, travel, long distance telephone calls and filing fees. Such expenses are not included as part of our fee for professional legal services, and periodic statements showing the amount of such disbursements will be rendered to the party responsible for paying for the legal services to which such expenses relate. Such out-of-pocket expenses are not included as part of our fee for professional legal services, and periodic statements showing the amount of such disbursements will be made available for review by the Applicant and/or the Agency upon request. For your information, we have attached hereto as Schedule C our policy with respect to the recovery of client disbursements. If such bill is sent to a party other than the Agency, a courtesy copy of such bill will be sent to the Agency upon request.

In the unlikely event that a dispute arises between us relating to our fees, you may have the right to arbitration of the dispute pursuant to Part 137 of the Rules of the Chief Administrator of the Courts, a copy of which will be provided to you upon request.

During the course of this engagement, the firm may collect certain personal information relating to the services contemplated by this letter. When we do so, we require that clients provide the minimum amount of personal information necessary for us to perform our legal services. The collection of any such

Susan Pedo, Chair December ___, 2021 Page 2

personal information will be governed by, and such personal information will be processed in accordance with, the firm's Privacy Policy, as well as any applicable privacy laws and codes of professional conduct. You can obtain a copy of the firm's Privacy Policy on our website at www.hodgsonruss.com or by requesting one from us.

This agreement to provide legal services may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. Further, the Firm reserves the right to vary the services offered to the Agency from those illustrated above upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the Agency.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the above by signing and returning a copy of this letter for our records.

We appreciate the opportunity to represent you.

Very truly yours,

	HODGSON RUSS LLF
	By:A. Joseph Scott, III
Agreed and Accepted as of this day of January, 2022	
CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT	AGENCY
By:Chair	

SCHEDULE A

Applicant Projects

Services as Bond Counsel (or Special Counsel)

Where an applicant (the "Applicant") requests that the Agency undertake a particular project (an "Applicant Project") and such Applicant Project will be financed out of proceeds of taxable or tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Agency (each separate issue of bonds being sometimes hereinafter referred to as the "Bonds"), we would anticipate acting as bond counsel to the Agency with respect to said transaction. We understand that the Agency has retained Marisa Franchini, Esq., the Corporation Counsel of the City of Albany, as local counsel or Agency Counsel. We further understand that the Agency would retain the option of using other law firms as Bond Counsel to the Agency where our firm has a legal conflict, or where there are special circumstances. In our capacity as Bond Counsel to the Agency, we would work with Ms. Franchini on Applicant Projects.

As a matter of custom and prudence, both the issuers and purchasers of taxable and tax-exempt Bonds require an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel. Such opinion ordinarily states that (1) the Bonds have been properly authorized and issued and are legal, valid and binding obligations of the Agency, (2) the legal documentation effectively provides the intended security for the Bonds, (3) interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal income taxes imposed by the State of New York, and (4), if the Bonds are intended to be issued as federally tax-exempt obligations, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. We anticipate rendering such opinions in connection with the issuance of each issue of the Bonds issued by the Agency during the period of our engagement.

Where the Applicant requests that the Agency undertake a Applicant Project and such project will not be financed out of proceeds of Bonds (a "Straight-Lease Transaction"), we would anticipate acting as special counsel to the Agency with respect to said transaction. As a matter of custom and prudence, the Agency and the Applicant require an opinion of counsel indicating that (1) the Straight-Lease Transaction has been properly authorized, and (2) the documents relating thereto have been properly executed by the Agency and are legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Agency. We anticipate rendering such opinions in connection with each Straight-Lease Transaction entered into by the Agency during the period of our engagement.

In order to establish the factual basis for the legal conclusions expressed in such opinion, we will prepare a record of proceedings (or transcript) for each issue of Bonds and each Straight Lease Transaction, which transcript will contain all documents and other materials necessary to assure that the form and substance of the transaction conform with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the New York Industrial Development Agency Act (Article 18-A of the New York General Municipal Law) (the "Act") and other applicable New York laws. The record of proceedings for each such transaction will typically include the following, as appropriate: (A) a copy of the application made by the Applicant to the Agency with respect to the particular project (the "Applicant Project"), together with documents relating to the Agency's actions accepting said application, holding a public hearing with respect thereto, and obtaining any required approvals with respect to the Applicant Project from the governing board or "chief elected official" of the municipality for whose benefit the Agency was created; (B) a transfer of the proposed project facility (the "Project Facility") by

the Applicant (and/or any seller thereof) to the Agency; (C) an installment sale agreement or lease agreement, whereby (1) the Applicant agrees, as agent of the Agency, to undertake and complete the Applicant Project, (2), if the transaction includes Bonds, the Agency agrees to make the proceeds of the Bonds available to pay the costs of the Applicant Project, and (3) the Agency grants to the Applicant the right to occupy the Project Facility and agrees to transfer ownership of the Applicant Project to the Applicant for a nominal sum (upon repayment of any Bonds); (D) a uniform agency project agreement, which provides for the granting of the "financial assistance" and the enforcement of the conditions for the granting of such "financial assistance," including any claw-back or other remedy provisions, (E) if the transaction includes Bonds and there are multiple holders of the Bonds, a trust indenture between the Agency and a corporate trustee acting as representative of the owners of the Bonds; (F), if the transaction includes Bonds and if required by the purchasers of the Bonds, a mortgage and/or security agreement from the Agency and the Applicant to the trustee (or the owner of the Bonds); (G), if the transaction includes Bonds, a guaranty of the Bonds from the Applicant to the trustee (or the owner of the Bonds); (H) various other security documents; (I), if the transaction includes Bonds and the Bonds are intended to be issued as federally tax-exempt bonds, various tax compliance documents; (J), if the transaction includes Bonds, a bond purchase agreement among the Agency, the Applicant and the initial purchaser of the Bonds; and (K), if the transaction includes Bonds and the Bonds are intended to be offered to multiple potential purchasers, various bond offering documents (including a preliminary and a final official statement or private placement memorandum relating to the Bonds). As Bond Counsel or Special Counsel, we typically draft all of such documents (excepting the bond offering documents, which are typically drafted by counsel to the initial purchaser of the Bonds, with input from us), as well as other documents which are customary and appropriate in such transactions. In addition, we assume responsibility for certain administrative matters, such as coordinating meetings, preparing bond forms, making arrangements for the closing and coordinating with counsel to the other parties to the transaction.

We typically assume no responsibility for any disclosure which may be required under state or federal securities law in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds (excepting only the description of the Bonds and the bond documents appearing in the bond offering documents) or for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of statements, representations, information or financial data supplied by the Applicant, or any of its affiliates.

Where we represent an industrial development agency on a regular basis, we typically provide certain pre-application services at no cost to the Agency (or the applicant) unless an application is subsequently filed with the Agency and the transaction subsequently moves beyond the inducement phase. Such pre-application services include providing advice to Agency staff as to whether a proposed transaction meets the requirements of Article 18-A of the New York General Municipal Law (the "Act"); attendance at pre-application meetings with prospective applicants whenever requested by Agency staff; and attendance at seminars and other marketing events organized by Agency staff.

Upon receipt from the Agency of an application and accompanying documentation relating to a particular project, we review the application to ascertain conformity of the proposed project with applicable state and federal laws affecting the Agency; prepare an opinion letter to the Agency regarding the legality of the proposed project; assuming said project appears legal, prepare the necessary documentation allowing the Agency to indicate preliminary acceptance of said application and allowing the Agency to conduct a public hearing relating to the transaction; assist the Agency in complying with the requirements of the New York State Environmental Conservation Law applicable to said application;

and, if the Agency determines to reject an application, advise the Agency on how best to accomplish said rejection. We typically request that our industrial development agency clients include as part of their application an indemnity agreement, whereby the Applicant agrees to pay all legal expenses incurred by the Agency, whether the transaction closes or not. Notwithstanding said indemnity agreement, we typically do not seek payment from either the Applicant or the Agency if the transaction does not proceed beyond the final inducement resolution.

Once the Agency has adopted a final inducement resolution with respect to the Applicant Project (and, if the transaction includes Bonds, we have received a draft commitment letter from the initial purchaser of the Bonds), we will prepare a first draft of the basic documents relating to the transaction. Upon receipt of comments from the relevant parties, we will finalize the basic documents and distribute drafts of the various supplemental documents to be delivered at closing for approval of the various parties. If the transaction includes Bonds and the Bonds are intended to be reoffered to multiple parties, once the documents are in good order, (A) the initial purchaser will circulate the preliminary official statement or preliminary private placement memorandum to judge market interest in the Bonds, (B) once the preliminary official statement or preliminary private placement memorandum has been circulated, the initial purchaser of the Bonds will "price" the Bonds (i.e., set the interest rates and other business terms of the Bonds), and (C), if the Applicant accepts the pricing on the Bonds, the various parties would then enter into the bond purchase agreement and the other documents relating to the sale of the Bonds, and the sale of the Bonds will be consummated.

Upon closing and delivery of our opinion, our responsibilities as Bond Counsel or Special Counsel will be concluded with respect to the transaction; specifically, but without implied limitation, we do not undertake (unless separately engaged) to provide continuing advice to the Agency or any other party relating to the transaction.

Once an application is filed with the Agency, if the Applicant requests that we begin drafting the basic documents for the transaction and for any reason thereafter the transaction does not close, we typically bill the Applicant for our legal fees on an hourly basis, based on our standard hourly billing rates, as well as our disbursements incurred in connection therewith.

For sale/leaseback transactions, we generally charge Applicants a fixed fee in the range of \$5,000-40,000, plus disbursements, depending on the size, timetable and complexity of the matter. The size of the fee may be greater for large, multi-million dollar capital projects (e.g., large housing projects, co-generation projects, solid-waste projects and wind-farm projects).

With respect to taxable and/or tax-exempt bond transactions, once the structure of said transaction is decided upon, based on our understanding of the proposed structure of the transaction, the anticipated timing of the closing, our normal hourly rates and our educated guess as to the amount of time it will take us to conclude a particular transaction, we will discuss with the Agency and/or furnish to the Applicant an estimate of our anticipated fees for such transaction. For certain transactions where the amount of required legal services which are predictable, we will if requested furnish a fixed fee for such transaction. Our fees as bond counsel are generally in the range of \$10,000-\$75,000, plus disbursements, again, depending on the size, type, timetable and complexity of the bond financing.

Our statement for services for an applicant transaction will be rendered at closing. If the structure of the transaction changes significantly, or the closing of the transaction occurs beyond a reasonable period (3 months for a Straight-Lease Transaction or 6 months for a bond transaction), and such restructuring or delay results in an increase in the time that we must expend on the transaction, we reserve the right to renegotiate any fixed fee. Any fee estimate is based upon the foregoing assumptions and further assumes that there will be no extraordinary questions of law, that the structure of the transaction does not change significantly once the initial draft of the basic documents are prepared and that we will not need to prepare more than the normal 3 or 4 drafts of the documents prior to closing. It also assumes that our firm will not be called upon to perform additional services with regard to securities law disclosure or other aspects of the transaction falling outside the traditional responsibilities of Bond Counsel or Special Counsel outlined above. In the event that the facts do not bear out the foregoing assumptions, we expect to charge for our additional services on an hourly basis. In any event, we will discuss with the Agency any additional services to be performed by us prior to our performing them.

We recognize that the Agency will have more applicants and more repeat business if project beneficiaries feel that they have been fairly treated by the Agency and its staff, including legal counsel. In this regard, we feel almost as a partner with the Agency and often sacrifice short-term gain for the long term interests of the Agency. Accordingly, we take pains to ensure that the project beneficiary is advised early on in the process regarding what magnitude of legal bills to expect, and endeavor to enter into an engagement letter with the client spelling out both his and our expectations prior to performing significant work beyond the inducement stage. We also endeavor to ensure that our bills do not exceed comparable bills rendered by upstate firms on comparable transactions.

Sometimes, our client will advise us early on in a transaction that the transaction is "fee-sensitive"-i.e., that the applicant will only utilize the Agency in the transaction if total fees are kept below a certain ceiling. In these circumstances, we will advise our client whether it is possible to keep our fees below a ceiling, and if we agree that it is possible, we will thereafter ensure that our fees do not exceed the ceiling. Similarly, if we agree to include our disbursements in such a ceiling, we will ensure that our total bill does not exceed the ceiling.

If the Agency or the Applicant requests that we perform additional services beyond those described above, our fee for those additional services will be based on the time which we devote to said additional services. Our firm's hourly rates presently range between \$235 and \$885 for lawyers and between \$130 and \$400 for legal assistants. The current hourly rate for A. Joseph Scott, III is \$500/hour. Periodic statements showing the current legal fee due will be made available for review by the Applicant and/or the Agency upon request.

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds or a Straight-Lease Transaction, we typically incur significant out-of-pocket expenses, such as photocopying, shipping of documents, travel, long distance telephone calls and filing fees. In addition, we compile a closing transcript after the Bonds are issued or the Straight-Lease Transaction is completed, which is distributed to each of the parties to the transaction and which involves additional photocopying costs and binding fees. Such out-of-pocket expenses are not included as part of our fee for professional legal services, and periodic statements showing the amount of such disbursements will be made available for review by the Applicant and/or the Agency upon request. For your information, we have attached hereto as Schedule C our policy with respect to the recovery of client disbursements. The actual amount of the disbursements may be minimized by shipping documents first class mail rather than by overnight courier and by limiting the number of drafts of documents. Upon request, we will discuss with the Applicant or the Agency in more detail the steps we can take to minimize disbursements.

In performing our services as Bond Counsel or Special Counsel, our primary client relationship will be with the Agency, although the transaction will be for the primary benefit of the Applicant. We assume that the Applicant and the other parties to the transaction will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their respective interests in the transaction.

SCHEDULE B

Non-Applicant Projects

General

Where the Agency proposes to undertake a transaction involving a project which does not involve an applicant (a "Non-Applicant Project"), we would anticipate acting as counsel to the Agency with respect to said transaction. Examples of Non-Applicant Projects undertaken by industrial development agencies around New York State include offices for the industrial development agency, incubator buildings, industrial parks, shortline rail facilities, community centers, an airport, a parking garage and similar examples of "economic development infrastructure". Examples of transactions involving Non-Applicant Projects might include obtaining financing (in the form of grants and/or loans) with respect thereto; reviewing real estate title records and/or title reports relating thereto; reviewing acquisition and/or construction documentation relating thereto; documenting the leasing and/or sale thereof, in whole or in part; and handling other matters relating thereto. Other examples include the review of Agency policies and procedures, including policies relating to the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2006, and the preparation of Application Forms and Policy Manuals.

Once we understand the scope of the work which the Agency desires us to undertake with respect to a particular transaction, we will discuss with the Agency an estimate of our anticipated fees for said transaction. We would expect to bill such matters at our normal hourly rates. Once we and the Agency reach an understanding as to the legal budget for said transaction, the source for payment thereof and the billing schedule related thereto, we will send a letter to the Agency memorializing said understanding. Periodic statements showing the current legal fee due will be made available for review by the Agency upon request.

Calendar Year 2022 Non-Applicant Projects

We understand that the Agency desires to retain the Firm for various administrative work for the 2022 calendar year. Such work shall include the following:

- 1. Review and revision of policies and procedures of the Agency
- 2. Continuing compliance with NYS law regulatory issues

We agree to bill such work at our normal hourly rates and we will deliver itemized bills to the Agency on a quarterly basis. We understand that the Agency has budgeted \$20,000 for such work and we agree to perform such services within that cap.

SCHEDULE C

Firm Policy With Respect to Client Disbursements

In the course of providing legal services to its clients, the Firm will from time to time incur various expenses on their behalf. These expenses are generally invoiced to the client in addition to the fees for legal services rendered. It is the policy of the Firm to attempt to keep these charges as low as possible, consistent with the timely performance of high quality legal services. Further, the Firm reserves the right to adjust the various changes for client disbursements on an annual basis, in the course of the Firm's customary review of attorney hourly rates and charges. Any adjustments in such charges will be made available to the client at the client's request.

The client is entitled to establish certain parameters in an attempt to limit disbursement charges, but it must be recognized that certain charges may be inevitable due to the nature of the transaction or legal services involved. Clients who desire to establish parameters for disbursements should contact the attorney-in-charge of the specific matter.

Certain of the disbursements described below are increased by a multiplier to compensate the Firm for various costs not identifiable to a particular client.

Set forth below are summary descriptions of the categories of disbursements commonly incurred on behalf of our clients. This list is by no means exhaustive, and other charges not described below will be invoiced to the client in an appropriate manner. Furthermore, the charges for certain of the items described below are imposed by third parties and may be increased without notice to us or to our clients:

- 1. BINDING: The entire cost of binding transcripts for circulation to various financing participants is invoiced to the client. The total cost is a function on the number and size of the transcripts to be bound and the charges for photocopies (see below).
- 2. COMPUTER TIME SHARING: The actual cost of computer time sharing for access to legal and other data bases will be passed through to the client. These charges are generally incurred in the course of performing legal research.
- 3. FILING AND RECORDING FEES AND CERTIFICATE CHARGES: The cost of various filings and recordings with federal, state and local agencies is borne by the client. Charges for obtaining certified copies of documents from federal, state and local agencies are also invoiced to the client. Occasionally, due to the nature and timing of the transaction involved, filings or requests for certified copies will be handled through service companies which may charge a premium rate.
- 4. PUBLICATION: Certain transactions require the publication of legal notices. The charges for such publication are established by the respective newspaper or periodical, and it is the policy of the Firm to pay the vendor directly and then forward the invoice to the client for reimbursement of same to the Firm.
- 5. STAFF OVERTIME: When secretarial or other support staff are required to work overtime with respect to a specific transaction, the cost is invoiced to the client at the rate of \$32.00 per hour. In

addition, all employees who work 10.5 consecutive hours or more are entitled to receive either lunch or dinner at the Firm's expense. These meal costs will be charged to the client responsible for the overtime costs.

- 6. PHOTOCOPIES: Photocopies are charged at a rate of 10 cents per page. For large quantities of photocopying which do not require immediate turnaround, we will use a local photocopying service if it can provide copies at a lower rate.
- 7. SHIPPING AND LOCAL DELIVERY: The cost of shipment by Federal Express, United Parcel Service, Express Mail, U.S. Mail or other delivery service at the retail price charged for such service is invoiced directly to the client. The actual amount of the charges will depend upon the number, weight, and carrier of packages and letters sent. The client will also be charged for local delivery by outside couriers at their normal rates, and for our in-house courier (\$7.50 per delivery or package).
- 8. TELEPHONE: The Firm's telephone system allows for the attribution of long distance charges to the appropriate client and file. These charges include long distance charges for telecopies, as well as conference calls arranged through Soundpath Conferencing Services. Most of our long distance calls are placed through RCI Long Distance Service at rates approximately the same as AT&T rates.
- 9. TELECOPY: Telecopies are charged at 50 cents per page. The charge is designed to amortize the cost of acquiring and maintaining our telecopiers, as well as to cover the cost of administrative expenses associated with telecopy charges, the cost of collection and the time-value of money.
- 10. TRAVEL: The actual cost of travel, including charges for mileage for firm-owned or attorney-owned automobiles at 57.5 cents per mile, parking, plane or train fares, taxi, hotel, meals, etc., will be invoiced to the client.

SCHEDULE D

Firm Policy With Respect to Various Administrative Matters

General

For your information, Part 1215 of the Joint Rules of the Appellate Division requires that a letter of engagement be sent to any person or entity that is responsible for the payment of attorney's fees. Further, in the unlikely event that a dispute arises between us relating to our fees, you may have the right to arbitration of the dispute pursuant to Part 137 of the Rules of the Chief Administrator of the Courts, a copy of which will be provided to you upon request.

Attorney Representation Conflicts and Waivers

In performing our services to the Agency, we represent only the Agency. We assume that other parties to a transaction involving the Agency will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their interest in the transaction. As we have discussed, you are aware that we represent many other clients in numerous and diverse matters. It is possible that, during the time that we are representing the Agency, some of our past, present or future clients will have transactions with the Agency (i.e., as transactional conflict). The Agency agrees that we may continue to represent, or may undertake in the future to represent, existing or new clients in any matter that is not substantially related to our work with the Agency (even if the interests of such clients in those other matters is directly adverse to the interests of the Agency); however, we agree that your prospective consent to conflicting representation shall not apply in any instance where, as a result of our representation of the Agency, we have obtained proprietary or other confidential information of a non-public nature, that, if known to such other client, could be used in any such other matter by such client to your material disadvantage. Further, any consent herein would not extend to acting adverse to the other client in a negotiation or a dispute situation.

In certain circumstances, a past or present client of our Firm may ask us to represent that client directly in a transaction involving the Agency. In such situation, if the Agency obtains separate counsel to represent the Agency and if the Agency consents to our representation of such client in such transaction, we may represent such client in such transaction, even if the interests of such client in such transaction is directly adverse to the interests of the Agency; however, we agree that your prospective consent to such conflicting representation shall not apply in any instance where, as a result of our representation of the Agency, we have obtained proprietary or other confidential information of a non-public nature, that, if known to such other client, could be used in such transaction by such client to your material disadvantage.

Acceptance of this proposal further constitutes authorization by the Agency to permit the Chair or the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency to execute any writing required by our conflicts partner to resolve any such "potential" conflicts of interest that may arise in the future.

Client Communications

As noted above, in performing our services as bond counsel to the Agency, our client is the Agency, and we represent its interests in connection with the particular matter. While the Agency takes formal action by resolution of its board (the "Agency Board"), the Chief Executive Officer typically has the day-to-day responsibility for the operations of the Agency and the undertaking of Applicant and Non-applicant Projects. Further, since the members of the Agency Board are appointed officials and not full-time employees of the Agency, we anticipate that the majority of our conversations and discussions will be with the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and other officers of the Agency.

Accordingly, when we need to communicate information to the Agency, you agree that communicating same to the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or any other official of the Agency shall be treated as if we had communicated such information to the full membership of the Agency. Further, if in our reasonable judgment we believe it necessary to communicate directly with the full membership of the Agency, we will be permitted to do so.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT Between

CAPITALIZE ALBANY CORPORATION (CAC)

and

CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CAIDA)

and

CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION (CACRC)

This agreement, made this ____ day of January, in the year Two Thousand and Twenty Two between the City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (hereinafter referred to as the ("CAIDA"), the City of Albany Capital Resource Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the ("CACRC"), and the Capitalize Albany Corporation, a not for profit corporation having its principal place of business at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York 12207 (hereinafter referred to as the "CAC"):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the CAC has offered to provide professional economic development management and administrative support services to the CAIDA and the CACRC, and,

WHEREAS, the CAIDA and the CACRC has accepted the offer of the CAC for such professional services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY COVENANT AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1 -SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

The CAC shall perform the professional and administrative support services set forth under Article 2 entitled "SCOPE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES" during the period commencing on January 1, 2022 and continuing until December 31, 2022. In the performance and acceptance of the services

herein, the parties understand, acknowledge and agree that the CAC is assuming no managerial role, nor undertaking any oversight responsibilities with regard to the powers and duties of the CAIDA or the CACRC or the actions or non-actions of its Board of Directors. Nothing in this agreement should be construed to transfer governance, oversight or fiduciary responsibilities from the CAIDA or the CACRC to CAC.

ARTICLE 2 - SCOPE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

During the period of this agreement, the CAC agrees to provide staffing, office equipment, utilities, phone and computer networking to perform the administrative, managerial, accounting, marketing, compliance, and project development functions of the CAIDA and the CACRC. Additionally, CAC will provide support to assist the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the CAIDA and the CACRC in the execution of their CAIDA and CACRC duties. CAC shall be responsible for the services described on Schedule A attached.

<u>ARTICLE 3 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE</u>

In consideration of the terms and conditions of this agreement, the CAIDA agrees to pay and the CAC agrees to accept, as full compensation for all services rendered under this agreement an amount not to exceed \$494,228. The CAC shall provide professional staff time towards fulfillment of this agreement, including all administrative clerical, secretarial, accounting, compliance, and information technology support as required.

ARTICLE 4 - METHOD OF PAYMENT

The CAIDA will pay CAC its professional services fee referenced under Article 3 of this agreement in twelve (12) monthly installments due and payable no later than the fifteenth day of each month.

ARTICLE 5 - TERMINATION

This agreement may be terminated at any time by any party for cause upon thirty (30) days written notice. In the event of termination, CAC shall be entitled to compensation for all work performed pursuant to this agreement to the date of termination.

ARTICLE 6 – MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION

- a. CAC shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless CAIDA and CACRC and their agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of CAC in CAC's performance of the tasks detailed in this Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by CAIDA's and/or CACRC's negligence or willful misconduct.
- b. CAIDA shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless CAC and CACRC and their agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of CAIDA in CAIDA's performance of the tasks detailed in this Grant Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by CAC's and/or CACRC's negligence or willful misconduct.
- c. CACRC shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless CAIDA and CAC and their agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of CACRC in CACRC's performance of the tasks detailed in this Grant Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by CAIDA's and/or CAC's negligence or willful misconduct.

<u>ARTICLE 7 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY</u>

CAC shall comply with all Federal, State, and Local equal employment opportunity laws, rules, and regulations relating, to all matters contained in this agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - ACCOUNTING RECORDS

Proper and full accounting records, including time sheets, shall be maintained by CAC for all services provided pursuant to this agreement. All applicable records shall be available for inspection or audit by the CAIDA if required.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed the day and year first above written.

City of Albany Industrial Development Agency

h:cps/ifs\aidacontract2000

By:	
Chairperson	
City of Albany Capital Resource Corporation	
By:	
By:Chairperson	
Capitalize Albany Corporation	
By: Chairperson	
Cnairperson	

SCHEDULE A

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

A. City of Albany Industrial Development Agency:

- 1. Implementation, execution and compliance with the CAIDA Policy Manual that was adopted at the June 2016 AIDA Meeting.
- 2. Provide for the deposit and investment of the funds of CAIDA in accordance with Part 4 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 3. Provide for the preparation of reports of the deposit and investment of the funds of CAIDA in accordance with Part 4 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 4. Ensure that procurement of goods or services by CAIDA complies with Part 5 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 5. Prepare an annual budget of CAIDA and the filing of such budget in accordance with Part 6 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 6. Monitor the activities of Bond Counsel to CAIDA to ensure compliance with Part 7 of the AIDA Policy Manual.
- 7. Provide for the preparation of financial statements and reports of CAIDA and the filing of such materials with appropriate State offices in accordance with Part 8 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 8. Provide for compliance with the provisions of Part 9 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- Report on questions involving potential conflicts of interest under Part 10 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 10. Provide for distribution of materials in accordance with Part 11 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 11. Consult with CAIDA agency counsel regarding membership and proper appointment of members of CAIDA pursuant to Part 12 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 12. Act as Records Access Officer with regard to any requests for information under the Freedom of Information Act in accordance with Part 13 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 13. Consult with Agency Counsel to CAIDA regarding proper notice of CAIDA meetings under Part 14 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.

- 14. Prepare, organize, and distribute minutes of each CAIDA meeting in accordance with Part 14 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 15. Coordinate the scheduling and noticing of public hearings and the delivery of notification letters in accordance with Part 15 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 16. Organize and maintain files relating to SEQRA compliance in accordance with Part 17 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 17. Monitor and maintain files regarding the Uniform Tax Exemption Policy of CAIDA, including ensuring that any filings required under Part 18 of the CAIDA Policy Manual are made.
- 18. Provide for the preparation and distribution of Applications by applicants in accordance with Part 19 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 19. Monitor and provide for the volume cap of CAIDA in accordance with Part 20 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 20. Monitor and maintain files regarding the collection of administrative fees of CAIDA under Part 21 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 21. Monitor compliance with Agency requirements relating to the exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real property transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes, job creation, job retention and job reporting in accordance with Part 22 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 22. Provide guidance in connection with any proposed assignment of an existing PILOT agreement in accordance with Part 23 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 23. Ensure that applicants are utilizing local labor in accordance with Part 24 of the CAIDA Policy Manual.
- 24. Monitor project applicants to ensure that the applicant is not subject to recapturing of benefits in accordance with Part 25 of the CAIDA manual.
- 25. Follows the media relations policy in accordance with Part 26 of the CAIDA manual.
- 26. Provide uniform criteria for the evaluation of projects in accordance with Part 27 of the CAIDA manual.
- 27. Review, organize, monitor and maintain policies and files relating to the requirements imposed on the CAIDA relating to the Public Authorities Accountability Act ("PAAA") and the Public Authorities Reform Act

("PARA"), including, but not limited to, working with CAIDA Agency Counsel and CAIDA Bond Counsel with respect to such policies.

B. City of Albany Capital Resource Corporation:

CAC will provide services similar to those described in Section A. above to CACRC.



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

THIS **AGREEMENT** dated as of January____, 2022 (the "Agreement") between **CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY** (the "Agency"), a public benefit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York, and **CAPITALIZE ALBANY CORPORATION** (the "CAC"), a not-for-profit-corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 325 of the Laws of 1974 of the State of New York, as amended, codified as Section 903-a of the General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial or industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the Act to promote, develop, and encourage one or more "projects" (as defined in the Act) and thereby advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the City of Albany and to improve their recreation opportunities, prosperity and standard of living; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a professional services agreement dated January____, 2022 (the "Services Agreement") by and between the Agency, the City of Albany Capital Resource Corporation ("the CACRC"), and the CAC, the Agency has contracted with the CAC for the administration of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the CAC develops and implements economic development strategies within the City of Albany and, in connection with the development and implementation of such strategies, the CAC undertakes various economic development programs and projects (the "Economic Development Program"); and

WHEREAS, in order to assist the CAC in undertaking the Economic Development Program, the Agency proposes to enter into this Agreement under which the Agency will provide funds to the CAC to pay a portion of the costs associated with the Economic Development Program; and

WHEREAS, the Agency will provide funds to the CAC in multiple disbursements during the term of this Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Agency and the CAC agree as follows:

- **1. Services and Program**. The Agency and the CAC agree as follows:
 - (a) That the Agency will make available to the CAC an aggregate amount equal to \$250,000.
 - (b) That the proceeds will be used for the express purpose of funding a portion of the costs, both capital and operating costs, of the Economic Development Program of the CAC, including, but not limited to the following: (i) implementation of the Capitalize Albany strategy, (ii) general business development, including Empire Zone administration, (iii) lending programs (including loan origination, loan capitalization, and loan servicing), (iv) Downtown Residential Program, and (v) coordination and fiscal support of neighborhood and riverfront re-development.
- **2. Disbursement.** Proceeds shall be paid quarterly by the Agency to the CAC in an amount equal to \$62,500 on or about the last day of the quarter, commencing on January 1, 2022 and ending on December 31, 2022. Disbursement of proceeds under this agreement based upon available cash.
- **3. Compliance with Law.** The CAC covenants that it will use the moneys disbursed under this Agreement only in the manner authorized by this Agreement.
- **4. Repayment.** Nothing herein shall be construed to require the CAC to reimburse the Agency.
- **Information.** The CAC agrees to furnish to the Agency, the following: (a) progress reports regarding the Economic Development Program, (b) upon request, a financial report indicating how the proceeds are allocated; and (c) such other information as the Agency may request. In addition, the CAC shall provide the Agency with an annual report regarding the Economic Development Program.

6. Indemnification.

- a. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CAC shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Agency and its agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of CAC in CAC's performance of the tasks detailed in this Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by the Agency's negligence or willful misconduct.
- b. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Agency shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CAC and its agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of Agency related to Agency's obligations in this Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by the CAC's negligence or willful misconduct.
- **Notices.** (a) All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed by United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

(1) To the Agency: at the address set forth in the initial paragraph of this Agreement, with a copy to:

City of Albany City Hall Albany, New York 12207 Attention: Corporation Counsel

- (2) To the CAC: at the address set forth in the initial paragraph of this Agreement.
- (b) The Agency and the CAC may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates and other communications shall be sent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement as of the day and date first written above.

BY:______Authorized Officer

CAPITALIZE ALBANY CORPORATION

CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL

Authorized Officer

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT dated as of January___, 2022 (the "Agreement") between CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION (the "Corporation"), a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York, and CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Agency"), a public benefit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York having an office for the transaction of business located at 21 Lodge Street, Albany, New York;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation was created pursuant to Section 1411 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act"), and pursuant to the provisions of the Enabling Act, Revenue Ruling 57-187, Private Letter Ruling 200936012, the Common Council of the City of Albany, New York (the "City") adopted a resolution on March 15, 2010 (the "Sponsor Resolution") (A) authorizing the incorporation of the Corporation under the Enabling Act and (B) appointing the initial members of the board of directors of the Corporation. In April, 2010, a certificate of incorporation was filed with the New York Secretary of State's Office (the "Certificate of Incorporation") creating the Corporation as a public instrumentality of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Enabling Act to relieve and reduce unemployment, promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job opportunities, and lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest, and in carrying out the aforesaid purposes and in exercising the powers conferred in the Enabling Act, the Enabling Act declares that the Corporation will be performing essential governmental functions; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Corporation is authorized and empowered under the Enabling Act to acquire real and personal property; to borrow money and issue negotiable bonds, notes and other obligations therefore; to lease, sell, mortgage or otherwise dispose of or encumber any of its real or personal property upon such terms as it may determine; and otherwise to carry out its corporate purposes in the territory in which the operations of the Corporation are principally to be conducted; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a professional services contract dated January____, 2022 (the "Professional Services Agreement") by and among the Corporation, the Agency and Capitalize Albany Corporation (the "CAC"), the Corporation has contracted with the CAC for the management of the operations of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the CAC develops and implements the economic development strategy of the City of Albany and, in connection with the development and implementation of such strategy, the CAC undertakes various economic development programs and projects (the "Economic Development Program"); and

WHEREAS, in order to provide the Agency with funds to pay for the services to be delivered by CAC under the Professional Services Agreement, the Corporation proposes to enter into this Agreement under which the Corporation will provide funds to the Agency to pay a portion of the fees payable under the Professional Services Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation will provide funds to the Agency as a one-time disbursement during the term of this Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Corporation and the Agency agree as follows:

- **1. Services and Program**. The Corporation and the Agency agree as follows:
 - (a) That the Corporation will make available to the Agency an aggregate amount not to exceed the current budgeted amount of \$20,000. Actual aggregate amount due will be based on the Corporation's percentage of total project fees collected of both the Agency and the Corporation in 2022.
 - (b) That the proceeds will be used for the express purpose of funding a portion of the costs of the amounts payable under the Professional Services Agreement.
- **Disbursement.** Proceeds shall be paid by the Corporation to the Agency on or about the last day of 2022. Disbursement of proceeds is based upon available cash.
- 3. Compliance with Law. The Agency covenants that it is aware of the laws governing the Corporation and the use of moneys of the Corporation, and the Agency agrees to use the moneys disbursed under this Agreement only in the manner so allowed.
- **4. Repayment.** Nothing herein shall be construed to require the Agency to reimburse the Corporation.
- **5. Information.** The Agency agrees to furnish to the Corporation, the following: (a) a financial report indicating how the proceeds are being spent; and (b) such other information as the Corporation may request. In addition, the Agency shall provide the Corporation with a copy of an annual report regarding the Economic Development Program.
- **6. Indemnification.** To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Agency shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Corporation and its agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of Agency related to Agency's obligations in this Agreement, except if such claims, damages, losses or expenses are caused by the Corporation's gross negligence or willful misconduct.

- **Notices.** (a) All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed by United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:
 - (1) To the Corporation: at the address set forth in the initial paragraph of this Grant Agreement, with a copy to:

City of Albany City Hall Albany, New York 12207 Attention: Corporation Counsel

- (2) To the Agency: at the address set forth in the initial paragraph of this Grant Agreement.
- (b) The Corporation and the Agency may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates and other communications shall be sent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement as of the day and date first written above.

CORPORATION

BY:

Authorized Officer

CITY OF ALBANY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Authorized Officer

CITY OF ALBANY CAPITAL RESOURCE

MEMO

TO: City of Albany Industrial Development Agency Finance Committee

FROM: City of Albany Industrial Development Agency Staff

RE: Financing Guidelines

DATE: December 8, 2021

Pursuant to the Finance Committee Charter it is a requirement and best practice that the Committee review the Agency's financing guidelines annually.

SCHEDULE L

STATEMENT OF INTENT AND FINANCING GUIDELINES REGARDING DEBT

The City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is committed to supporting projects in the City of Albany, New York that create and/or retain jobs and/or promote private sector investment. It is the general policy of the Agency to support projects that it is permitted to support under applicable NYS law, through the issuance of debt, that meet the job and investment criteria of the preceding sentence after a comprehensive review of the applicable financing application and a finding that the project will provide a substantial benefit to the residents of the City of Albany.

Debt issued by the Agency is issued for the benefit of a conduit borrower and is a special obligation of the Agency, payable solely from the credit of the conduit borrower or revenues derived from the project for which the debt was issued. Regarding debt issued by the Agency to benefit conduit borrowers and which constitute special obligations of the Agency (i.e., limited obligations payable solely from the revenues derived from the project for which the debt was issued), the Agency shall permit the issuance of such debt, subject to the requirements of federal and state law.

Any debt to be issued by the Agency to finance the actions and operations of the Agency and that will be general obligations of the Agency will be subject to financing guidelines established and adopted by the Finance Committee at that time.

In any case, debt issued by the Agency shall not be an obligation of the City of Albany, New York or the State of New York.

City of Albany

Industrial Development Agency

21 Lodge Street Albany, New York 12207 (p): 518.434.2532 (f): 518.434.9846

Susan Pedor, Chair Lee Eck, Vice Chair Darius Shahinfar, Treasurer Anthony Gaddy, Secretary Robert Schofield Sarah Reginelli, Chief Executive Officer Thomas Conoscenti, Chief Operating Officer Andy Corcione, Project Services Director A. Joseph Scott, Special Counsel Marisa Franchini, Agency Counsel

CAIDA Finance Committee 2021 Self Evaluation

1. Meetings

- During 2021, the Finance Committee met twelve (12) times (the charter requires the Committee to meet a minimum of 2 times per year, plus any additional meetings as needed).
- All meetings were properly noticed and open to the public as required, and all agendas, meeting
 materials and minutes were made available to the public in advance of each meeting on the
 Agency's website.
- Meeting materials were provided to board members in advance of each meeting.
- Minutes of each meeting were regularly prepared, distributed to board members and posted on the Agency's website.

2. 2021 Summary of Activities

The following is a summary of the Finance Committee's activities and recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding Agency operations during 2021.

Actions taken:

- Reviewed and made recommendations, as necessary, to update the Finance Committee charter.
- Reviewed the Agency's investment and procurement policies.
- Reviewed and recommended to the Board the Agency's annual budget, including major proposed transactions.
- Reviewed quarterly financial reports.
- Reviewed the annual investment report of the Agency.
- Reviewed the Agency's financing guidelines.
- Met with and requested information from Agency staff, independent auditors and advisors or outside counsel, as necessary, to perform the duties of the Committee.
- Made recommendations concerning the appointment and compensation of Bond and Agency counsel.
- Conducted a self-evaluation of Committee performance.
- Reported annually to the Agency's board about how it has discharged its duties and met its responsibilities.

Other Activities:

- Vetted project applications for financial assistance.
- Reviewed project financial information and recommended level of financial assistance to applicants.
- Reviewed and approved modifications to closing documents.
- Reviewed the annual property report of the Agency.
- Supported and provided input for strategic planning for the Agency.

3. Compliance

- During 2021, the Committee complied with all NYS ABO and PAAA requirements.
- The Committee complied with its functions as regards to Board reporting and regulatory compliance.